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PART |

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act Safe Harba Statement

Certain statements included herein and in othasrte@nd public filings made by RCM Technologies,. [(“RCM” or the “Company”) are
forward-looking within the meaning of the Privatec8rities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Thesevitard-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements regarding the adaptdy businesses of new technology solutions; seehly businesses of outsourced soluti
such as those offered by the Company in conneutitnsuch adoption; and the outcome of litigatiahl{oth the trial and appellate levels)
involving the Company. Readers are cautionedshelt forward-looking statements, as well as othezde by the Company, which may be
identified by words such as “may,” “will,” “expett;anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “project,”intend,” “believe,” and similar
expressions, are only predictions and are suljeatgsks and uncertainties that could cause the @owylp actual results and financial position
to differ materially from such statements. Sucksiand uncertainties include, without limitatidii): unemployment and general economic
conditions affecting the provision of informaticechnology and engineering services and solutiodstaplacement of temporary staffing
personnel; (i) the Company's ability to continoettract, train and retain personnel qualifiedheet the requirements of its clients; (iii) the
Company's ability to identify appropriate acquimiticandidates, complete such acquisitions and ssftdly integrate acquired businesses;
uncertainties regarding pro forma financial infotima and the underlying assumptions relating taugitions and acquired businesses; (V)
uncertainties regarding amounts of deferred conaitiae and earnout payments to become payableateefoshareholders of acquired
businesses; (vi) adverse effects on the market pfithe Company's common stock due to the poteesale into the market of significant
amounts of common stock; (vii) the adverse effgobtential decrease in the trading price of the Gamy's common stock would have upon
the Company's ability to acquire businesses thrahglissuance of its securities; (viii) the Comparmapility to obtain financing on
satisfactory terms; (ix) the reliance of the Compapon the continued service of its executive effi; (x) the Company's ability to remain
competitive in the markets that it serves; (xi) @@mpany's ability to maintain its unemploymenurasce premiums and workers
compensation premiums; (xii) the risk of claimsrigemade against the Company associated with prayigimporary staffing services; (xiii)
the Company's ability to manage significant amowofhisformation and periodically expand and upgragdénformation processing
capabilities; (xiv) the Company's ability to remaincompliance with federal and state wage and kows and regulations; (xv) uncertainties
in predictions as to the future need for the Comfmeervices; (xvi) uncertainties relating to theedition of costs and expenses to each ¢
Company’s operating segments; (xvii) the costsoaideicting and the outcome of litigation involvidgetCompany, and the applicability of
insurance coverage with respect to any such liigatxviii) obligations relating to indemnities drsimilar agreements entered into in
connection with the Company’s business activitiag] (xix) other economic, competitive and governtakfactors affecting the Company's
operations, markets, products and services. Reagdercautioned not to place undue reliance ore tfeeward-looking statements, which
speak only as of the date made. The Company wdsrno obligation to publicly release the resofitany revision of these forward-looking
statements to reflect these trends or circumstaaitesthe date they are made or to reflect thenweace of unanticipated events.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

RCM Technologies is a premier provider of busireasd technology solutions designed to enhance axinize the operational performance
of its customers through the adaptation and depémyraf advanced information technology and engingeservices. RCM has been an
innovative leader in the design, development, aliyery of these services to commercial and govemrsectors for more than 35

years. Over the years, the Company has developkdssembled an attractive, diverse and extensiitofio of capabilities, servic

offerings and delivery options, established a pnosezord of performance and credibility, and baiitefficient pricing structure. This
combination offers clients a compelling value prsipon with the potential to substantially acceterthe successful attainment of their
business objectives.

RCM consists of three operating segments: Informnafiechnology, Engineering and Commercial Serviddse Company’s Information
Technology, or IT, segment provides enterpriseri®ss solutions, application services, infrastrectalutions, competitive advantage &
productivity solutions, life sciences solutions amber selected vertical market specific offerin&CM’s Engineering segment provides
engineering and design, engineering analysis, teahwriting and technical support services. Thmmpany’s Commercial Services segment
provides health care professionals as well asoakand light industrial temporary personnel.

The Company services some of the largest natiorthlrdernational companies in North America as asla lengthy roster of Fortune 1000
and mid-sized businesses in such industries asspaoe/Defense, Energy, Financial Services, Lifer®es, Manufacturing & Distribution,
the Public Sector and Technology. RCM believedfdrs a range of solutions that fosters long-telient relationships, affords cross-selling
opportunities, and minimizes the Company’s depecel@m any single technology or industry sector.MRE&lls and delivers its services
through a network of 37 offices in selected regitmeughout North America.

The Company is a Nevada corporation organized L1 he address of its principal executive offe@500 McClellan Avenue, Suite 350,
Pennsauken, NJ 08109-4613.

During the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010, apmately 46.4% of RCM’s total revenues were derifredn IT services, 32.9% from
Engineering services, and the remaining 20.7% f@mmmercial services.

Demand for the Company’s services can be signifiggmpacted by changes in the general level ohecouic activity and particularly
technology spending. During periods of reducedhentc activity, such as the environment in the BaiStates and the world in general s
approximately mid-2007 and continuing into 201@ €@ompany may also be subject to increased prmiegsure in its markets due to
reduced spending by clients of the Company ancbitspetitors. Extended periods of weakness in tbe@mny can have a material adverse
impact on the Company’s business and results afatipes. Accordingly, the Company's operationsehiae@en adversely impacted by the
continuing economic downturn that began in the heidd 2007.

Industry Overview

Businesses today face intense competition, thdertygd of constant technological change and theinggeeed for business process
optimization. To address these issues and to ctampere effectively, companies are continually eatihg the need for implementing
innovative solutions to upgrade their systems, iappbns, and processes. As a result, the alafign organization to integrate and align
advanced technologies with new business objectsvestical.

Although most companies recognize the importanagptimizing their systems, applications and proesds compete in today’s challenging
environment, the process of designing, developitjimplementing business and technology solutisfmetoming increasingly

complex. The Company believes that many businesgefocused on return on investment analysisioripzing their initiatives. The
Company believes that as a consequence, over shéepayears, companies have elected to deferfineder cancel investments in new
systems, software, and solutions and have focusedaking more effective use of previous technolalgicvestments.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Industry Overview (Continued)

The current economic environment challenges manypemies to integrate and manage computing envirotsnoensisting of multiple
computing platforms, operating systems, databasésietworking protocols and off-the-shelf softwapplications to support business
objectives. Companies also need to keep pacengithtechnology developments, which often rapidhydes existing equipment and internal
skills obsolete. At the same time, external ecaodattors have caused many organizations to foousore competencies and trim
workforces in the IT management area. Accordintgjigse organizations often lack the quantity, qualnd variety of IT skills necessary to
design and support IT solutions. IT managers haeged with supporting increasingly complex systamd applications of significant
strategic value, while working under budgetaryspanel and expertise constraints within their owgaaizations.

The Company believes its target market for IT serwiis among middle-market companies, which tylyidatk the time and technical
resources to satisfy all of their IT needs intdsnalhese companies commonly require sophisticategerienced IT assistance to achieve
their business objectives and often rely on IT iserproviders to help implement and manage theitesys. However, many middle-market
companies rely on multiple providers for their I8enls. Generally, the Company believes that thisnee on multiple providers results from
the fact that larger IT service providers do nogeéathese companies, while smaller IT service iplerg, which do target these companies,
lack sufficient breadth of services or industry Whedge to satisfy all of these companies' needse Gompany believes this reliance on
multiple service providers creates multiple relasbips that are more difficult and less cost-effecto manage than a single relationship and
can adversely influence the quality and compatibdf IT solutions. RCM is structured to providédale-market companies a single source
for their IT needs.

The Company’s Engineering group continues to faouareas of growth within the energy and aerosjpatestries.

In recent years, many businesses have been agvengelcted by higher oil prices, and for that aadaus other reasons, there has been
growing sentiment around the world for the develephof alternative sources of energy, includingrzewed interest in nuclear power. Over
the same period, there has been a significantasera spending in the United States in the aeoespad defense industries due largely to a
strengthening of the military and homeland secunitsesponse to geo-political unrest and the thoéstrrorism. The combination of higher
energy prices and increased military spending hested numerous business opportunities for seprimeders, especially those engaged in
engineering operations in North America and abroad.

In the healthcare services industry, a shortageicfes and other medical personnel in the UnitateSthas led to increases in business
activity for health care service companies, inahgdihe Company’s Specialty Healthcare Group. Duygart to an aging population and
improved medical technology, the demand for setebtlth care professionals is expected to contiwee the next several years.

Meanwhile, the general economy of the United Stawes the past several years has negatively affdetaporary staffing businesses which
are providers of light industrial and clerical helgenerally, demand for lower-skilled workers isakened in a general economy that is in a
downward cycle.

Business Strategy

RCM is dedicated to providing solutions to meetlisnts’ business needs by delivering informatiechnology and engineering

services. The Company’s objective is to be a reizegl leader of specialized professional consubiyices and solutions in major markets
throughout North America. The Company is adaptipgrating strategies to achieve this objectivey &ements of its growth and operating
strategies are as follows:




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Growth Strategy

Promote Full Life Cycle Solution Capability

The Company promotes a full life cycle solution a@aifity to its customers. The goal of the fulkli€ycle solution strategy is to fully addres
client’s project implementation cycle at each stage aféteelopment and deployment. This entails the Gompvorking with its clients fror
the initial conceptualization of a project throutghdesign and project execution, and extending égmgoing management and support of the
delivered product. RCM's strategy is to build j@ais and solutions offerings selectively, utilizitgyextensive resource base.

The Company believes that the effective executidhie strategy will generate improved margins loa éxisting resources. The completion
of this service-offering continuum is intended ffoed the Company the opportunity to strengtherglderm client relationships that will
further contribute to a more predictable revenoessh.

In addition to a full life cycle solution offeringhe Company continues to focus on transitionirig igher value oriented services in an effort
to increase its margins on its various serviceslifrelative to lower value services) and genemenmue that is more sustainable. The
Company believes this transition is accomplishegimguing additional vertical market specific smlas in conjunction or combination with
longer-term based solutions, through expansiotsdaflient relationships and by pursuing stratetliareces and partnerships.

Achieve Internal Growth

The Company continues to promote its internal ghosttategies. Its growth strategy is designecetteb serve the Company’s customers,
generate higher revenues, and achieve greatertiogeedficiencies. National and regional sales egament programs were designed and
implemented to segregate clients by vertical maskelt national accounts to advance a value addetegfocus. This process is improving
account coordination so clients can benefit frompie industry knowledge and the Company can magimizjor account opportunities.

RCM provides a company orientation program in wtdales managers and professionals receive relsfannation about company
operations.

RCM has adopted an industry-centric approach &ssahd marketing. This initiative contemplate¢ dhiants within the same industry
sectors tend to have common business challengiéseréfore allows the Company to present and dekwhanced value to those clients ir
vertical markets in which RCM has assembled thatgst work experience. RCM’s consultants contiugcuire project experience that
offers differentiated awareness of the businesBertges that clients in that industry are facifidnis alignment also facilitates and creates
additional cross-selling opportunities. The Comphaelieves this strategy will lead to greater actq@enetration and enhanced client
relationships.

Operational strategies contributing to RCM’s intdrproductivity include the delineation of certaiew solutions practice areas in markets
where its clients had historically known the Comypan a contract service provider. The formatiothese practice areas will facilitate the
flow of project opportunities and the delivery abject-based solutions.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Growth Strategy (Continued)

PursueSelective Strategic Acquisitions

The industry in which the Company operates consirioébe highly fragmented, and the Company plam®ndinue to selectively assess
opportunities to make strategic acquisitions as sypportunities are presented to the Company. Tdmpany's past acquisition strategy was
designed to broaden the scope of services anditattmompetencies and grow its full life cycle g@un capabilities, and the Company would
continue to consider such goals in any future aitjoins. In considering acquisitions, the Compasguses principally on companies with (i)
technologies or market segments RCM has targetestrimtegic value enhancement, (i) margins thdltneit dilute the margins now being
delivered, (iii) experienced management persor{figlsubstantial growth prospects and (v) selleh®wesire to join the Company's
management team. To retain and provide incenfarasianagement of its acquired companies, the Cagnpas generally structured a
significant portion of the acquisition price in tieem of multi-tiered consideration based on growtloperating profitability of the acquired
company over a two to three-year period.

Operating Strategy

Develop and Maintain Strong Customer Relationships

The Company seeks to develop and maintain strdegaictive customer relationships by anticipatind fotusing on its customers'

needs. The Company emphasizes a relationshiptedepproach to business, rather than the transamtiassignmentriented approach th
the Company believes is used by many of its contgusti This industry-centric strategy is desigredltow RCM to expand further its
relationships with clients in RCM'’s targeted sestor

To develop close customer relationships, the Corylpaomactice managers regularly meet with bothtexjsand prospective clients to help
design solutions and identify the resources neé&uledecute their strategies. The Company's masad®s maintain close communications
with their customers during each project and owrgpoing basis after its completion. The Compariebes that this relationship-oriented
approach can result in greater customer satisfac#alditionally, the Company believes that by abbrating with its customers in designing
business solutions, it can generate new opporésniti cross-sell additional services that the Campas to offer. The Company focuses on
providing customers with qualified individuals @ams of experts compatible with the business nekitts customers and makes a concerted
effort to follow the progress of such relationshipensure their continued success.

Attract and Retain Highly Qualified Consultants drethnical Resources

The Company believes it has been successful iactitig and retaining qualified consultants and i@tbrs by (i) providing stimulating and
challenging work assignments, (ii) offering comped& wages, (iii) effectively communicating witlsitandidates, (iv) providing selective
training to maintain and upgrade skills and (vyjmiing the needs of its customers with appropriat&ilfed personnel. The Company believes
it has been successful in retaining these persalueeln part to its use of practice managers wkaladicated to maintaining contact with,
monitoring the satisfaction levels of, the Compamgnsultants while they are on assignment.

Centralize Administrative Functions

The Company continues to improve its operatiorfadieficies by integrating general and administefnctions at the corporate or regional
level, and reducing or eliminating redundant fuorasi formerly performed at smaller branch offic&his enables the Company to realize
savings and synergies and to control and mon#avperations efficiently, as well as to quicklyeigtate new acquisitions. It also allows local
branches to focus more on growing their local ofpena.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Operating Strategy (Continued)

Centralize Administrative Functions (Continued)

To accomplish this, the Company’s financial rep@tand accounting systems are centralized in tlepaay’s operational headquarters in
Parsippany, NJ. The systems have been configarafioiv the performance of all back office functpimcluding payroll, project
management, project cost accounting, billing, humesource administration and financial reporting aonsolidation. The Company
anticipates upgrading its financial reporting andaanting system platform beginning in 2010.

Information Technology

The Company’s IT segment is comprised of two bussirgroups — the IT Consulting Business Group aedTiSolutions Business

Group. The IT Consulting Business Group consiktaree business units in North America — the HasRegion, the Central Region and the
Western Region. The Solutions Business Group stmef three business units — IT Enterprise ManaggntEnterprise Business Solutions
and Life Sciences.

The RCM Enterprise Business Solutions Group’s borsness mission is to continue its strategic fansation designed to focus the
Company on developing proprietary customized sohgtiand intellectual property by bundling softwanestems, tools and services into
integrated business and technology solutions.

RCM’s sector knowledge coupled with technical andibess process experience enable the Compangvimerstrategic planning and
direction, rigorous project execution, and manageraad support services for an entire projectdifele. RCM has successfully completed
multimillion-dollar projects in a variety of indugtverticals using time-tested methodologies thahage strict budgets, timelines and quality
metrics.

Among those IT services provided by RCM to itsrdigeare:

« Enterprise Business Solutions

« Application Services

« Infrastructure Solutions

« Competitive Advantage & Productivity Solutions
« Life Sciences Solutions

The Company believes that its ability to delivefoimation technology solutions across a wide rasfgechnical platforms provides an
important competitive advantage. RCM ensuresith@bnsultants have the expertise and skills retéal&eep pace with rapidly evolving
information technologies. The Company’s strategipimaintain expertise and acquire knowledge iftiphe technologies so it can offer its
clients non-biased technology solutions best suddteir business needs.

The Company provides its IT services through a remalb flexible delivery methods. These include agement consulting engagements,
project management of client efforts, project immpéatation of client initiatives, outsourcing, bath and off site, and a full complement of
resourcing alternatives.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had assigne=zippately 650 information technology employees andsultants to its customers.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Engineering

The Company’s Engineering segment consists of thuseess units — Engineering Services and Projeoiser Systems Services USA and
Power Systems Services Canada. The Engineeringc8gand Projects unit includes Aerospace, Manufeg and Industrial Engineering
divisions. The Power Systems units focus primariiythe nuclear power, fossil fuel and electrititytindustries.

RCM provides a full range of Engineering servigeduding Engineering & Design, Engineering Analy&isgineer-Procure-Construct,
Configuration Management, Hardware/Software Valaa& Verification, Quality Assurance, Technical Mifig & Publications,

Manufacturing Process Planning & Improvement, Radity Centered Maintenance (RCM), Component & Eupént Testing and Risk
Management Engineering. Engineering services @néqed at the site of the client or, less freqiierdt the Company’s own facilities.

The Company believes that the deregulation of thigéies industry and the aging of nuclear powearpk offer the Company an opportunity to
capture a greater share of professional servicgpaoject management requirements of the utilitiesistry both in engineering services and
through cross-selling of its information technolaggrvices. Heightened competition, deregulatiod, rapid technological advances are
forcing the utilities industry to make fundamenthanges in its business process. These pressawresbmpelled the utilities industry to
focus on internal operations and maintenance &eivand to increasingly outsource their personeglirements. Additionally, the Company
believes that competitive performance demands fteregulation should increase the importance ofimétion technology to this

industry. The Company believes that its expedise strong relationships with certain customerkiwithe utilities industry position the
Company to be a leading provider of professionalises to the utilities industry.

The Company provides its engineering services tiitanumber of delivery methods. These includeaged tasks and resources, complete
project services, outsourcing, both on and off;sited a full complement of resourcing alternatives.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had assignexippately 450 engineering and technical employeebconsultants to its customers.
Commercial
The Company’s Commercial Services segment corsfiste Specialty Health Care and General Suppari&ss groups.

The Company’s Specialty Health Care Group speeslia long-term and shotérm staffing as well as executive search and piace for the
following fields: rehabilitation (physical therafss occupational therapists and speech languagelpgtsts), nursing, managed care, allied
health care, health care management and medideé sifipport. The specialty health care group piewiservices to hospitals, long-term care
facilities, schools, sports medicine facilities gmivate practices. Services include in-patientpatient, sutacute and acute care, multiling
speech pathology, rehabilitation, and geriatricligieic, and adult day care. Typical engagemeititgeierange from three to six months or are
on a day-to-day shift basis.

The Company’s General Support Services Group pesvithntract and temporary services, as well asgregnt placement services, for full-
time and part-time personnel in a variety of fuoitil areas, including office, clerical, data ensggretarial, light industrial, shipping,
receiving, and general warehouse. Contract angdesmny assignments range in length from less timenday to several weeks or months.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had assignemxippately 370 specialty health care and 600 gdmseigport services personnel to its
customers.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Branch Offices

The Company's organization consists of 37 branfibesflocated in the United States, Puerto Rico@adada. The Company's Information
Technology Group anticipates opening a branchefficireland during 2010. The locations and sewiof each of the branch offices are set
forth in the table below.

NUMBER OF SERVICES
LOCATION OFFICES PROVIDED(1)
USA
California 10 IT, C
Connecticu 2 E
Florida 1 C
Georgia 1 IT
Illinois 1 IT
Maryland 1 IT
Massachuseti 1 IT
Michigan 3 IT, E
Minnesota 1 IT
Missouri 1 IT
New Jerse 3 IT, E
New York 2 IT,E,C
Ohio 1 IT
Pennsylvani: 1 C
Rhode Islanc 1 E
Texas 1 IT
Wisconsin 2 IT, E
33
PUERTO RICC 1 IT
CANADA 3 IT, E

(1) Services provided are abbreviated as follows:
IT - Information Technology
E - Engineering
C - Commercial

Branch offices are primarily located in markets ti@ Company believes have strong growth prosgect3 and Engineering services. The
Company's branches are operated in a decentraimé@preneurial manner with most branch officesrafing as independent profit

centers. The Company's branch managers are giyificant autonomy in the daily operations of theispective offices and, with respect to
such offices, are responsible for overall guidaawoe supervision, budgeting and forecasting, saldsvaarketing strategies, pricing, hiring ¢
training. Branch managers are paid on a perforexdased compensation system designed to motivat@anagers to maximize growth and
profitability.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Branch Offices (Continued)

The Company is domiciled in the United States andégments operate in the United States and Carfelaenues for the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2010 and Total Assets by geographicesed January 2, 2010 are as follows (in thousands

Total
Revenue:! Assets
United State: $163,57. $67,35°
Canads 22,53¢ 9,51¢
Puerto Ricc 3,281 1,337
$189,39: $78,20¢

The Company believes that substantial portions@thiuying decisions made by users of the Compa®gy\dces are made on a local or
regional basis and that the Company's branch afficest often compete with local and regional prexsd Since the Company's branch
managers are in the best position to understarnditival markets and customers often prefer localjuers, the Company believes that a
decentralized operating environment enhances apgna¢rformance and contributes to employee antbmes satisfaction.

From its headquarters locations in New JerseyCthrapany provides its branch offices with centraliaeéministrative, marketing, finance,
MIS, human resources and legal support. Centcbziministrative functions minimize the administratourdens on branch office managers
and allow them to spend more time focusing on sabhelsmarketing and practice development activities.

The Company's principal sales offices typically dnane general manager, one sales manager, thsees@les people, several technical
delivery or practice managers and several recalitéhe general managers report to regional viesigents who are responsible for ensuring
that performance goals are achieved. The Compegnisnal vice presidents meet frequently to discbest practices" and ways to increase
the Company's cross selling of its professionalises. The Compang’practice managers meet periodically to strategizéntain continuity
and identify developmental needs and cross-setipgprtunities.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing efforts are conducted at e bnd or regional level through the Company'svogk of branch offices. The Company
emphasizes long-term personal relationships witttazners that are developed through regular assessifheustomer requirements and
proactive monitoring of personnel performance. Tloenpany's sales personnel make regular visitgistireg and prospective

customers. New customers are obtained througheaséiles programs and referrals. The Company eagesi its employees to participate in
national and regional trade associations, locattes of commerce and other civic associationee Gbmpany seeks to develop strategic
partnering relationships with its customers by jmimg comprehensive solutions for all aspects ofistomer's information technology,
engineering and other professional services ne€bls.Company concentrates on providing carefultgaed professionals with the
appropriate skills in a timely manner and at coritipetprices. The Company regularly monitors tlwality of the services provided by its
personnel and obtains feedback from its custonwets their satisfaction with the services provided.

The Company has elevated the importance of wonkitiy and developing its partner alliances with teadogy firms. Partner programs are
place with firms RCM has identified as strategigathportant to the completeness of the servicerioifeof the Company. Relations have
been established with firms such as ADP, Harlamafcial, IBM, Mercury, Microsoft, Oracle and QADnang others. The partner progre
may be managed either at a national level from RCddrporate offices or at a regional level fronbitanch offices.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Sales and Marketing (Continued)

The Company'’s larger representative customersdec8M, ADP, Bristol Myers Squibb, Bruce Power, @eglg, Dow Chemical USA,
Entergy, FlightSafety International, Lilly del Claei, Microsoft, New York City Department of EducatitdNew York Power Authority, Ontar
Power Generation, Pocino, PSE&G, QualxServ, Schdriough, United Technologies Corporation, U.S. &&pent of the Treasury,
Vermont Yankee Nuclear Power, Wyeth and Wells Farfioe Company serves Fortune 1000 companies ang mialdle market

clients. The Company's relationships with thesstamers are typically formed at the customers’llocaegional level and from time to time,
when appropriate, at the corporate level for nali@ecounts.

During the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010, Wdritechnologies Corporation accounted for 12.7%efG@Gompany’s revenues. No other
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Compamyenues in that period. The Company's five ateh twenty largest customers
accounted for approximately 30.0%, 36.7% and 47 1@&pectively, of the Company's revenues for theafiyear ended January 2, 2010.

Recruiting and Training

The Company devotes a significant amount of tinekr@sources, primarily at the branch level, to fimgg training and retaining its
professional personnel. Full-time recruiters méilthe Company's proprietary databases of avaifseonnel, which are cross-indexed by
competency and skill to match potential candidatiéls the specific project requirements of the custo. The qualified personnel in the
databases are identified through numerous acsyitieluding networking, referrals, trade shows, fairs, schools, newspaper and trade
journal advertising, Internet recruiting servicesl adhe Compar’'s website.

The Company believes that a significant elemenh@fCompany's success in retaining qualified cdastd and contract personnel is the
Company's use of consultant relationship managetdexchnical practice managers. Consultant relskip managers are qualified Company
personnel dedicated to maintaining on-site cométtt, and monitoring the satisfaction levels ok tiompany's consultants and contract
personnel while they are on assignment. Practeeagers are consulting managers responsible faethaical development and career
development of the Company'’s technical personnglivthe defined practice areas. The Company gesviechnical training and skills
development through vendor-sponsored courses, dempased training tools and on the job mentorirgy@ams.

Information Systems

The Company is continuing to invest in its curreRP hardware, application and operating systene HRP system is hosted on multi
redundant Dell PowerEdge servers with a Windows32filerprise server operating system. The brarfatesfof the Company are networl
to the corporate offices via private circuits, whgnable the ERP application to be accessed sgairall operational locations. The ERP
system supports Company-wide operations such aslpayilling, human resources, project systemgoants receivable, accounts payable,
all general ledger accounting and consolidatiommémy functionality.

The Company also has Autotime and TES, automateelénd attendance systems, which augment the Eftieadjon by catering to the

needs of its diverse business offerings and digtibworkforce. The applications are housed dweettiered Dell server architecture and are
currently servicing offices in the United Statesl @anada.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Information Systems (Continued)

The Company has migrated its recruiting (e.g. aatd) and sales (e.g. requirement) tracking to 8ah@n application service provider
(ASP) solution. The integrated solution allows R@Mrack all client requirements on an enterpréseel. The solution further permits RCM
to search multiple sources (e.g. job boards) totifleand match suitable candidates for an oppadtgwor need. This solution allows RCM to
build and maintain a proprietary database of prkfip candidates, thereby enhancing the Compaalikty to respond quickly to client
demands. Furthermore, the solution increasesilfigiimternally to sales personnel and the managignteam to manage client priorities no
longer on a localized but a national basis. Custedreporting and query capabilities allow RCM mg@ment to monitor personnel
performance and client responsiveness. All datardiodmation is accessible via a web portal.

RCM has engaged in three major strategic initiaticeimprove upon its ability to secure data, deliservices and improve on its
communication infrastructure. They are as follows

1) Deployed a new mail architecture based on the MuaftdExchange 2007 platform. The system is comg@rigegedundant mail routir
servers and clustered mailbox servers attached Stoage Area Network (SAN). This new messagiraffptm has the curre
capacity of six Terabytes (TB), with the capabilitiyscaling to 18 Terabytes (TB). In addition toinséorage being sized for VO
integration, web access to the mail server is alibwved via secure HTTPs protoc

2) Upgraded its perimeter network and WAN architectiare secure centralized model on Private Netwadn3port (PNT) AT&
circuits, utilizing Multiple Packet Label Switchif1PLS) transport protocol. The hub datacentetsabperational headquarters
been outfitted with redundant fiber circuits fronT&T and Optimum Lightpath utilizing Border Gatewdrotocol (BGP) fc
automatic failover. In addition, redundant firevgallouters and switching architecture should ptaigainst hardware failur

3) Moved to servicesriented architecture facilitating the implemerdatof the Cisco Voice over IP (VOIP) solution whishcurrentl
deployed throughout RCM'’s offices. This enterprissution, based on Cisco CallManag®enity Voicemail, Mobility Manage
Meeting Place, Fax Server and Video Presencewidilen completed, unify all RCM offices in the US d@dnada. The summary
benefits include four digit extension calls betw&ddM offices, email and voicemail unification, saftd mobile phone integratic
video and web conferencing, and central and emaibled faxing

The above initiatives have contributed to improeechmunication within RCM and also to its clients.
Other Information

Safeguards Business, Disaster and Contingency Planning

RCM has implemented a number of safeguards to girtite Company from various system-related riskBiging a warm data center disaster
recovery site, redundant telecommunications angeselystems architecture, multi-tiered server agsktbp backup infrastructure, and data
center physical and environmental controls. Initamly RCM has developed disaster recovery / bissim®ntinuity procedures for all offices.

Given the significant amount of data generatethén@ompany’s key processes including recruitinggssgayroll and customer

invoicing, RCM has established redundant procedduestioning on a daily basis, within the Compangtimary data center. This
redundancy should mitigate the risks related tolWvare, application and data loss by utilizing tbaaept of live differential backups of
servers and desktops to Storage Area Network (SfeMices on its backup LAN, culminating in offsitge storage at an independent
facility. Besides the local tape backup rotatibbm@nch office systems, data is also replicateBAN devices in Parsippany, NJ to achieve
business continuity. Controls within the data ceeterironment ensure that all systems are prodgtimenitored and data is properly
archived.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Other Information (Continued)

Safequards Business, Disaster and Contingency Planning (Coetlh

Additionally, RCM has contracted and brokered styat relationships with thirgarty vendors to meet its recovery objectives indient of :
system disruption. For example, comprehensiveicetgvel agreements provided by AT&T and CiscoR@M'’s data circuits and network
devices guarantee minimal outages as well as netwedundancy and scalability. The Disaster Reqosite, located at the corporate office
in Pennsauken, NJ, provides WAN, ERP, VOIP, fifmlacation and messaging services should the pyirdata center facility at Parsippany,
NJ, become inoperabl

The Company'’s ability to protect its data assetsresy damage from fire, power loss, telecommurocatifailures, and facility violations is
critical. The Company uses Websense mail manageseerice to filter all emails destined for the RCMomain before being delivered to
the corporate mail servers. Websense’s web filgesipplication has also been deployed to safeghardnterprise from malicious internet
content. The deployment of virus, spam, and patahagement controls extends from the perimeter nm&ttocall desktops and is centrally
monitored and managed. In addition to the virus$ malware controls, an Intrusion Protection Systi#t) provides monitoring and alerts to
changes in network traffic patterns as well as kmbwastile signatures.

The Company maintains a disaster recovery planathiines the recovery organization structure,g@rnd procedures, including site
addendum disaster plans for all of its key opegatifiices. Corporate IT personnel regulate thentemiance and integrity of backed-up data
throughout the Company.

Competition

The market for IT and engineering services is higlimpetitive and is subject to rapid change. Wesrharket demand has shifted, many
software companies have adopted tactics to puewéss and consulting offerings making them dicarhpetitors when in the past they n
have been alliance partners. Primary competitaiside participants from a variety of market segisieincluding publicly and privately held
firms, systems consulting and implementation firaggplication software firms, service groups of comep equipment companies, facilities
management companies, general management condirtirsgand staffing companies. In addition, ther@any competes with its clients'
internal resources, particularly where these resssurepresent a fixed cost to the client. Suchpetition may impose additional pricing
pressures on the Company.

The Company believes its principal competitive adages in the IT and engineering services markdtide: strong relationships with
existing clients, a long-term track record with o%€000 clients, a broad range of services, tectheixpertise, knowledge and experience in
multiple industry sectors, quality and flexibilibf service, responsiveness to client needs andispeselivering IT solutions.

Additionally, the Company competes for suitablewasition candidates based on its differentiatecuéition model, its entrepreneurial and
decentralized operating philosophy, and its stroorgorate-level support and resources.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Seasonality

The Company’s operating results can be affectetth®geasonal fluctuations in corporate IT and exgging expenditures. Generally,
expenditures are lowest during the first quartahefyear when clients are finalizing their IT arineering budgets. In addition, quarterly
results may fluctuate depending on, among othagtiithe number of billing days in a quarter arelgbasonality of clients’ businesses. The
business is also affected by the timing of holidayd seasonal vacation patterns, generally regutitower revenues and gross profit in the
fourth quarter of each year. Extreme weather canditmay also affect demand in the first and foqguhrters of the year as certain clients’
facilities are located in geographic areas sulifectosure or reduced hours due to inclement wealheddition, the Company generally
experiences an increase in its cost of sales aodrasponding decrease in gross profit and grosgimpercentage in the first and second
fiscal quarters of each year as a result of regettertain state and federal employment tax ratdgelated salary limitations.

Employees

As of January 2, 2010, the Company employed anradtrative, sales, recruiting and management sfadpproximately 250 people,
including certified IT specialists and licensed ieegrs who, from time to time, participate in ITdagngineering design projects undertake
the Company. As of January 2, 2010, there wereoappately 650 information technology and 450 eegiring and technical employees and
consultants assigned by the Company to work omtcfiojects for various periods. As of Januar2@10, there were approximately 370
specialty health care and 600 general supportcEnamployees and consultants. None of the Corfgpamployees is represented by a
collective bargaining agreement. The Company deanmsiits relationship with its employees to be good

Access to Company Information

RCM electronically files its annual report on Foi®+K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current répon Form 8-K and all amendments to
those reports with the Securities and Exchange Gesiom (“SEC”). The public may read and copy ahthe reports that are filed with the
SEC at the SEG'Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wagshnin DC 20549. The public may obtain informatemnthe operation ¢
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC a®@-BEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet ditgp(//www.sec.goy that contains
reports, proxies, information statements, and atifermation regarding issuers that file electrati.

RCM makes available on its website or by respontlieg of charge to requests addressed to the Corigp@orporate Secretary, its annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on FormQ@,G:urrent reports on Form 8-K and all amendmemthdse reports filed by the Company
with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15{(theoSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendéubse reports are available as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is maatally filed with or furnished to the Securitiaed Exchange Commission. The Company’
website is http://www.rcmt.com The information contained on the Company’s wiehsir on other websites linked to the Company’s
website, is not part of this document. Referererein to the Company’s website is an inactive tef@rence only.

RCM has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable tofats directors, officers and employees. In additthe Company has adopted a Code of
Ethics, within the meaning of applicable SEC rubgsplicable to its Chief Executive Officer, Chigh&ncial Officer and Controller. Both the
Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics are availabde, 6f charge, by sending a written request taCthimpany’s Corporate Secretary. If the
Company makes any amendments to either of thesesJother than technical, administrative, or otimr-substantive amendments), or
waive (explicitly or implicitly) any provision otie Code of Ethics to the benefit of its Chief Exa@uOfficer, Chief Financial Officer or
Controller, it intends to disclose the nature & #mendment or waiver, its effective date and torwiit applies in the investor relations
portion of the website, or in a report on Form 8it&d with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company’s business involves a number of risdsie of which are beyond its control. The risk andertainties described below are not
the only ones the Company faces. Management lesligaat the most significant of these risks andertamties are as follows:

Economic Trends

The global economic crisis has caused, among tiiregs, a general tightening in the credit markietwer levels of liquidity, increases in the
rates of default and bankruptcy, and extreme \itjaiin credit, equity and fixed income marketsnyror all of these developments could
negatively affect the Company's business, operagésglts or financial condition in a number of wayor example, current or potential
customers may be unable to fund capital spendiograms, new product launches of other similar evaisavhereby they might procure
services from the Company, and therefore delayie@se or cancel purchases of services or not pdglay paying for previously purchased
services. In addition, financial institution faiks may cause the Company to incur increased egp@mnsnake it more difficult either to utili
existing debt capacity or otherwise obtain finagdior operations, investing activities (includidgetfinancing of any future acquisitions), or
financing activities.

Government Regulations

Staffing firms and employment service providersgaaerally subject to one or more of the followipges of government regulation:

(1) regulation of the employer/employee relatiopdbigtween a firm and its employees, including tétkhwolding or reporting, social security
or retirement, benefits, workplace compliance, wage hour, anti-discrimination, immigration and kens’ compensation; (2) registration,
licensing, record keeping and reporting requirersieand (3) federal contractor compliance. Faitareomply with these regulations could
result in the Company incurring penalties and oliailities, monetary and otherwise.

Highly Competitive Business

The staffing services and outsourcing markets yfel\ncompetitive and have limited barriers to gntRCM competes in global, national,
regional, and local markets with numerous tempostaffing and permanent placement companies. Bado®etition in the staffing industry
is significant and pricing pressures from competditand customers are increasing. In additiongtigeincreasing pressure on companies to
outsource certain areas of their business to It @ifishore outsourcing firms. RCM expects thatlével of competition will remain high in
the future, which could limit RCM’s ability to maain or increase its market share or profitability.

Events Affecting Significant Customers

As disclosed in Item 1, “Business,” the five, terddawenty largest customers accounted for appraeiin80.0%, 36.7% and 47.3%,
respectively, of revenues for the fiscal year enthtbary 2, 2010. Some of these customers maffdmteal by the current state of the
economy or developments in the credit markets. tvapany's customers may engage in mergers ofmsitransactions. Should any
significant customers experience a downturn inrtbesiness that weakens their financial conditiomerge with another company or
otherwise cease independent operation, it is plestiat the business that the customer does watlCtimpany would be reduced or
eliminated, which could adversely affect financigults.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Dependence Upon Personnel

The Company'’s operations depend on the continded®bf its officers and other executive managem@ihe loss of key officers and
members of executive management may cause a sigmifilisruption to the Company’s business. RCM d&gmends on the performance and
productivity of its local managers and field penseln The Company’s ability to attract and retagwrbusiness is significantly affected by
local relationships and the quality of service ned. The loss of key managers and field persanaglalso jeopardize existing client
relationships with businesses that continue tathils&Company's services based upon past relatiaalitp local managers and field
personnel.

Revolving Credit Facility and Liquidity

If the Company was unable to borrow under its Réngl Credit Facility, it may adversely affect liglily, results of operations and financial
condition. The Company's liquidity depends oralidity to generate sufficient cash flows from cgtéons and, from time to time, borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility with the Comgamagent lender Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania. Cbmpany believes that Citizens B:

is liquid and is not aware of any current risk tthety will become illiquid. At January 2, 2010et@ompany had outstanding borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility of $0.0 millioand letters of credit outstanding for $1.6 miilio

The Revolving Credit Facility contains various firtégal and non-financial covenants. At January@,@® the Company was in compliance
with the covenants and other provisions of the @ifeakility. Any failure to be in compliance coutdve a material adverse effect on liquic
results of operations and financial condition.

Goodwill and Intangible Impairments May Have an Adwerse Effect on Financial Statements

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had $8.3 miltibgoodwill and $0.5 million intangible assetsitsmbalance sheet, which represents
11.2% of total assets. Goodwill represents thenpmn paid over the fair value of the net tangibte antangible assets acquired in business
combinations. The Company is required to perfogoadwill and intangible asset impairment test bieast an annual basis. Application of
the goodwill and intangible asset impairment teguires significant judgments including estimatidriuture cash flows, which is dependent
on internal forecasts, estimation of the long-teate of growth for the businesses, the usefuldifer which cash flows will occur and
determination of weighted average cost of capifZtanges in these estimates and assumptions cekédially affect the determination of fi
value and/or conclusions on goodwill and intangdseet impairment for each reporting unit. The @any conducts its annual goodwill and
intangible asset impairment test as of the lastaddlge Company'’s fiscal November each year, orenicrquently if indicators of impairment
exist. We periodically analyze whether any suchaators of impairment exist. A significant amoohjudgment is involved in determining
if an indicator of impairment has occurred. Sudtiéators may include a sustained, significant ekecin share price and market capitalizat
a decline in expected future cash flows, a sigaiftadverse change in legal factors or in the legsiclimate, unanticipated competition
and/or slower expected growth rates, among othEng. Company compares the fair value of each oéfterting units to their respective
carrying values, including related goodwill anchimgible assets. There were no triggering evenisglthe fiscal year ended January 2, 2010
that indicated a need to perform the impairmeritgder to the Company's annual test date. Tharebe no assurance that future tests of
goodwill and intangible asset impairment will nesult in impairment charges. If the Company isuhexgl to write down goodwill or
intangible assets, the related charge could méyeréauce reported net income or result in a osslfor the period in which the write down
occurs.

Workers’ Compensation and Employee Medical Insurane
The Company self-insures a portion of the expoBurisses related to workers’ compensation andl@yeps’ medical insurance. The
Company has established reserves for workers’ cosgtion and employee medical insurance claims baisdustorical loss statistics and

periodic independent actuarial valuations. Sigaiiit differences in actual experience or significdranges in assumptions may materially
affect the Company’s future financial results.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Improper Activities of Temporary Professionals Coutl Result in Damage to Business Reputation, Discontiation of Client
Relationships and Exposure to Liability

The Company may be subject to claims by clientsteel to errors and omissions, misuse of propriétdoymation, discrimination and
harassment, theft and other criminal activity, madgice, and other claims stemming from the impr@mtivities or alleged activities of
temporary professionals. There can be no assuthateurrent liability insurance coverage will dgequate or will continue to be availabl
sufficient amounts to cover damages or other asgeciated with such claims.

Claims raised by clients stemming from the impragetions of temporary professionals, even if withmerit, could cause the Company to
incur significant expense associated with reworit€or other damages related to such claims. &wumibre, such claims by clients could
damage the Company's business reputation and neshé discontinuation of client relationships.

Acquisitions May Not Succeed

The Company reviews prospective acquisitions aaement of its growth strategy. The failure of @rguisition to meet the Company’s
expectations, whether due to a failure to succigsfilegrate any future acquisition or otherwisgy result in damage to the Company’s
financial performance and/or divert managementendibn from its core operations or could negativafect the Company’s ability to meet
the needs of its customers promptly.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations and Changes in Exchage Rates

The Company is exposed to risks associated witigarcurrency fluctuations and changes in exchaatgs. RCM’s exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations relates to operations in @anarincipally conducted through its Canadian gliag;. Exchange rate fluctuations affect
the U.S. dollar value of reported earnings derifrech the Canadian operations as well as the cagryatue of the Company's investment in
the net assets related to these operations. Thgp&uwoy does not engage in hedging activities wispeet to foreign operations.

Trademarks

Management believes the RCM Technologies, Inc. naragtremely valuable and important to its bussn@he Company endeavors to
protect its intellectual property rights and maiinteertain trademarks, trade names, service mawttother intellectual property rights,
including The Source of Smart Solutions®. The Campis not currently aware of any infringing use®ther conditions that would be
reasonably likely to materially and adversely aftbe Company's use of its proprietary rights.

Data Center Capacity and Telecommunication Links

Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS), card key acciss suppression, and environmental control systprotect RCM’s datacenter. All
systems are monitored on a 24/7 basis with aledapbilities via voice or email. The telecommatiians architecture at RCM utilizes
managed private circuits from AT&T, which encompesprovisioning redundancy and diversity.

RCM'’s ability to protect its data center againsindge from fire, power loss, telecommunicationsufailand other disasters is critical to
business operations. In order to provide manysafervices, RCM must be able to store, retrieka;gss and manage large databases and
periodically expand and upgrade its capabilitidey damage to the Company’s data centers or ahyréadf the Company’s
telecommunication links that interrupts its opemasi or results in an inadvertent loss of data caditersely affect RCM’s ability to meet its
customers’ needs and their confidence in utiliZR@M for future services.

RCM'’s ability to protect its data, provide servi@wl safeguard its installations, as it relatebed T infrastructure, is in part dependent on
several outside vendors with whom the Company raaistservice level agreements.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (CONTINUED)

Litigation

The Company is currently, and may in the futureobee, involved in legal proceedings and claims agigiom time to time in the course of
its business, including the litigation describedNiote 16 (Contingencies) to the consolidated fir@rstatements. An adverse outcome to the
referenced litigation or other cases arising infthiere could have an adverse impact on the caffest®ldl financial position and consolidated
results of operations of the Company.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company provides specialty professional comgulervices, principally performed at various lications, through 37 administrative
and sales offices located in the United Statesrt®ico, and Canada. The majority of the Compsuffices typically consist of 1,000 to
6,000 square feet and are leased by the Compangrfos of one to three years. Offices in largesroaller markets may vary in size from
typical office. The Company does not expect thaill be difficult to maintain or find suitable ése space at reasonable rates in its mark
in areas where the Company contemplates expansion.

The Company's executive office is located at 25@CMllan Avenue, Suite 350, Pennsauken, New J&82§94613. These premises con
of approximately 10,200 square feet and are leasadate of $14.33 per square foot per annum ferra ending on January 31, 2011.

The Company's operational office is located at 2fiéhiew Boulevard, # Floor, Parsippany, NJ 07054-1271. These premisesist of
approximately 28,000 square feet and are leasadade of $29.00 per square foot per annum form énding on June 30, 2012.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See discussion of Legal Proceedings in Note 16 t{@gencies) to the consolidated financial statemérntiuded in Item 8 of this Report.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURIT Y HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sgchiolders during the quarter ended January 2, 2010
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of the Company's common stock are traddtheMNASDAQ Global Market under the Symbol "RCMTThe following table sets
forth approximate high and low sales prices fortthe years in the period ended January 2, 201@parted by The NASDAQ Global Mark

Common Stock

Fiscal 2008 High Low
First Quartel $6.51 $3.82
Second Quarte $4.81 $3.75
Third Quartel $4.57 $2.00
Fourth Quarte $2.24 $0.77

Fiscal 2009
First Quartel $1.88 $0.90
Second Quarte $2.49 $1.02
Third Quarte! $2.44 $1.47
Fourth Quarte $3.10 $2.10

Holders

As of February 4, 2010, the approximate numberotdédrs of record of the Company's Common Stock ¥@&s Based upon the requests for
proxy information in connection with the Compar®310 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Compariieises the number of beneficial
owners of its Common Stock is approximately 2,403.

Dividends

The Company has never declared or paid a cashetidgidn the Common Stock and does not anticipate@ayy cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. It is the current policy af tompany's Board of Directors to retain all eaggito finance the development and expansion
of the Company's business. Any future paymeniwélends will be at the discretion of the Boardfectors and will depend upon, among
other things, the Company's earnings, financiatlt@m, capital requirements, level of indebtednesstractual restrictions, and other factors
that the Board of Directors deems relevant. TheoReéng Credit Facility (as defined in Item 7 hefeprohibits the payment of dividends or
distributions on account of the Company'’s capitatk without the prior consent of the majority bétCompany’s lenders.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Returns

Not required
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not required

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

RCM participates in a market that is cyclical inura and extremely sensitive to economic changesa result, the impact of economic
changes on revenues and operations can be subkteggulting in significant volatility in the Corapy’s financial performance.

After pro forma adjustments to remove the impadheoée acquisitions in its Information Technologgmient completed in 2008 and 2009,
RCM experienced a significant decline in its 208%enues and gross profit as compared to 2008cpkatiy in its Information Technology
and Commercial segments. RCM believes the detiiits Information Technology and Commercial pronfia revenues was principally due
to a deterioration of overall economic conditionsts geographic markets and industry verticalsexstin 2009.

Over the years, RCM has developed and assemblatifrantive portfolio of capabilities, establishedraven record of performance and
credibility and built an efficient pricing structur The Company is committed to optimizing its bess model as a single-source premier
provider of business and technology solutions &ititirong vertical focus offering an integratedesoit services through a global delivery
platform.

The Company believes that most companies recogimzenportance of advanced technologies and busipregesses to compete in today’s
business climate. However, the process of degiguiaveloping and implementing business and teclgyatolutions is becoming
increasingly complex. The Company believes thatyntausinesses today are focused on return on imessgtanalysis in prioritizing their
initiatives. This has an impact on spending byenirand prospective clients for many emerging selutions.

Nonetheless, the Company continues to believebilisinesses must implement more advanced IT andesig solutions to upgrade th
systems, applications and processes so that timemagimize their productivity and optimize theirfsemance in order to maintain a
competitive advantage. Although working under tetdgy, personnel and expertise constraints, corepaie driven to support increasingly
complex systems, applications, and processes wifis@nt strategic value. This has given rise tteanand for outsourcing. The Company
believes that its current and prospective cliengéscantinuing to evaluate the potential for outsmg business critical systems, applications,
and processes.

The Company provides project management and camgsiérvices, which are billed based on eitheredpgon fixed fees or hourly rates,
a combination of both. The billing rates and grofargins for project management and solutionsicesvare higher than those for
professional consulting services. The Company igdélgeendeavors to expand its sales of higher mesglutions and project management
services. The Company also realizes revenues dtiemt engagements that range from the placemectmfact and temporary technical
consultants to project assignments that entaitifizery of end-to-end solutions. These servicespaimarily provided to the client at hourly
rates that are established for each of the Companyisultants based upon their skill level, expegeand the type of work performed.

The majority of the Company's services are provigieder purchase orders. Contracts are utilizeckotain of the more complex assignme
where the engagements are for longer terms or witemse documentation on the nature and scogeeaidsignment is necessary. Although
contracts normally relate to longer-term and man@glex engagements, they generally do not obliteteustomer to purchase a minimum
level of services and are usually terminable byciltomer on 60 to 90 days’ notice. The Compaynftime to time, enters into contracts
requiring the completion of specific deliverablégypically these contracts are for less than ora.ye
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Overview (Continued)

Costs of services consist primarily of salaries emthpensation-related expenses for billable coastdt including payroll taxes, employee
benefits, and insurance. Selling, general and midirétive expenses consist primarily of salaried lkenefits of personnel responsible for
business development, recruiting, operating a@sijtand training, and include corporate overhe@emses. Corporate overhead expenses
relate to salaries and benefits of personnel resplenfor corporate activities, including the Compa corporate marketing, administrative
and reporting responsibilities and acquisition pang. The Company records these expenses whenmédcubepreciation relates primarily to
the fixed assets of the Company. Amortizationtesldo the allocation of the purchase price of@uition, which has been assigned to
covenants not to compete, and customer lists. iitguns have been accounted for under “Businessaifioations,” and have created
goodwill and intangible assets.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statementeweepared in accordance with generally accepteouating principles, which require
management to make subjective decisions, assessarghestimates about the effect of matters tiean&erently uncertain. As the numbe
variables and assumptions affecting the judgmameases, such judgments become even more subjesthile management believes its
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, aetudis may be materially different from estimateidnagement has identified certain
critical accounting policies, described below, tteguire significant judgment to be exercised byagement.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssurthe Compang’ Engineering Services and Information Technologyvise:
segments perform consulting and project soluti@rgises. All of the Compang’segments perform staff augmentation servicesdanie
revenue from permanent placement fees. The majfrthe Company's revenues are invoiced on a éintematerials basis.

Project Services - The Company recognizes revenues in accordante‘Révenue Recognition” which clarifies applicatiohU.S. generally
accepted accounting principles to revenue trarmati Project services are generally provided oosé-plus, fixed-fee or time-and-material
basis. Typically, a customer will outsource a e project or activity and the Company assumgsonesibility for the performance of such
project or activity. The Company recognizes rewsnand associated costs on a gross basis as seaxécgrovided to the customer and costs
are incurred using its employees. The Company fime to time, enters into contracts requiring ¢bepletion of specific deliverables. T
Company may recognize revenues on these delivarablbe time the client accepts and approvesdlieetables. In instances where proj
services are provided on a fixed-price basis andtmtract will extend beyond a 12-month periodeneie is recorded in accordance with the
terms of each contract. In some instances, revisrhiled and recorded at the time certain milestare reached, as defined in the
contract. In other instances, revenue is billedl itorded based upon contractual rates per heurercentage of completion). In addition,
some contracts contain “Performance Febsh(ses) for completing a contract under budgetfoRmance Fees, if any, are recorded whe
Company is reasonably certain of collection. Saomracts also limit revenues and billings to maximamounts. Provision for contract
losses, if any, are made in the period such lossedetermined. For contracts where there isigetable, if the work is not complete on a
specific deliverable and the revenue is not recgghithe costs are deferred. The associated aesexpensed when the related revenue is
recognized.
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Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Consulting and Staffing Services - Revenues derived from consulting and staffingises are recorded on a gross basis as services are
performed and associated costs have been incusieg employees of the Company. In these circunesarthe Company assumes the ris
acceptability of its employees to its customerscdrtain cases, the Company may utilize other eangs and their employees to fulfill
customer requirements. In these cases, the Compaaives an administrative fee for arranging lidling for, and collecting the billings
related to these companies. The customer is tjpiesponsible for assessing the work of thesepanes who have responsibility for
acceptability of their personnel to the customédnder these circumstances, the Company’s repogteshues are net of associated costs
(effectively recognizing the net administrative fady).

Permanent Placement Services - The Company earns permanent placement fees fromding permanent placement services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guarantepsritsanent placements on a
prorated basis for 90 days. In the event a catglidanot retained for the 90-day period, the Comypaill provide a suitable replacement
candidate. In the event a replacement candidateotde located, the Company will provide a pratatfund to the client. An allowance for
refunds, based upon the Company'’s historical egpes, is recorded in the financial statements.eRaes are recorded on a gross basis.

Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdom trade customers. Credit is extended baseslatuation of customers’ financial
condition and, generally, collateral is not regdirédccounts receivable payment terms vary andited in the financial statements at
amounts due from customers net of an allowancddabtful accounts. Accounts outstanding longen tin@ payment terms are considered
past due. The Company determines its allowanahsgidering a number of factors, including the tbraf time trade accounts receivable
past due, the Company'’s previous loss historycttstomer’s current ability to pay its obligationth® Company, and the condition of the
general economy and the industry as a whole. Tdmpany writes off accounts receivable when theybecuncollectible.

The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts iasesl by approximately $0.1 million to $1.2 millias of January 2, 2010 from $1.1
million as of December 27, 2008. The primary reafw this increase is that the Company has redeie$0.1 million of older invoices wil
its largest customer that may be in dispute dysotential billing discrepancies.

On February 26, 2008, the Company accepted a psomgigiote from a customer for $7.4 million in payrnef a like amount of accounts

receivable from that customer. The customer pia $illion through April 30, 2008 at which pointamagement of the Company concluded
that the customer was going to default on its Ma®QD8 installment payment. During 2008 the Conyparote off the note receivable.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the premium paid over theValue of the net tangible and intangible assetsiaed| in business combinations. The
Company is required to perform a goodwill and igiaie asset impairment test on at least an anrassbApplication of the goodwill and
intangible asset impairment test requires signifigadgments including estimation of future casiwi$, which is dependent on internal
forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of gtofer the businesses, the useful life over whiabhcflows will occur and determination of
weighted average cost of capital. Changes in thstmates and assumptions could materially affectietermination of fair value and/or
conclusions on goodwill and intangible asset impaint for each reporting unit. The Company condistannual goodwill and intangible
asset impairment test as of the last day of thegamyis fiscal November each year, or more freqyahthdicators of impairment exist. We
periodically analyze whether any such indicatorsrgfairment exist. A significant amount of judgréninvolved in determining if an
indicator of impairment has occurred. Such indicsatoay include a sustained, significant declinshare price and market capitalization, a
decline in expected future cash flows, a significaiverse change in legal factors or in the busicbsiate, unanticipated competition and/or
slower expected growth rates, among others. Dtigetthin trading of the Company stock in the publiarketplace and the impact of the
control premium held by a relatively few sharehadgd¢he Company does not consider the market dizpitian of the Company the most
appropriate measure of fair value of goodwill for ceporting units. We look to earnings/revenudtiples of similar companies recently
completing acquisitions and the ability of our rem units to generate cash flows as better measofrthe fair value of our reporting units,
and under such calculations the fair value exceduedecorded goodwill by at least 25% for eacthefreporting units. The Company
compares the fair value of each of its reportingsuto their respective carrying values, includietated goodwill and intangible assets. Tt
can be no assurance that future tests of goodmdllimtangible asset impairment will not resultrimpiairment charges.

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

The Company evaluates long-lived assets and irtibngssets with definite lives for impairment whesreevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nudyoa recoverable. When it is probable that urtdiated future cash flows will not be
sufficient to recover an asset’s carrying amoung,dsset is written down to its fair value. Assetse disposed of by sale, if any, are reported
at the lower of the carrying amount or fair valasd cost to sell.

Accounting for Stock Options
The Company uses stock options to attract, retaiveward employees for long-term service. The gamy follows “Share Based Payment,”
which requires that the compensation cost relatirgfock-based payment transactions be recognizidancial statements. This

compensation cost is measured based on the faie whithe equity or liability instruments issuethe Company measures stock-based
compensation cost using the Black-Scholes optiaingy model.

22




ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Accounting for Income Taxes

In establishing the provision for income taxes datkrred income tax assets and liabilities, andatadn allowances against deferred tax
assets, the Company makes judgments and inteiipretdtased on enacted tax laws, published tax go&and estimates of future

earnings. As of January 2, 2010, the Company had serm deferred tax assets of $0.7 million astedltlong term net deferred income tax
assets of $3.8 million. The short term deferredatssets primarily represent timing differencesG#&AP expense accruals not deductible for
tax purposes. The long term deferred tax assptesent the tax effect of temporary differencedlierGAAP versus tax amortization of
acquisitions made in the current and prior perio@Realization of deferred tax assets is depenaigon the likelihood that future taxable
income will be sufficient to realize these benefit®r time, and the effectiveness of tax planninategies in the relevant tax jurisdictions. In
the event that actual results differ from thes@vestes and assessments, valuation allowances magbeed.

The Company adopted the provisions of “AccountimgUncertainty in Income Taxes,” on January 1, 200le Company recognized no
material adjustments in the liability for unrecaggtd income tax benefits. The Company conductspgsations in multiple tax jurisdictions
the United States and Canada. With limited exoegtithe Company is no longer subject to auditsthte and local tax authorities for tax
years prior to 2006. The Compi's federal income tax returns have been examineditfh 2007. As of January 2, 2010, the Company did
not have any material uncertain tax positions.

The Company'’s future effective tax rates could theeasely affected by changes in the valuationfléferred tax assets or liabilities or
changes in tax laws or interpretations thereo&ddition, the Company is subject to the examinadibits income tax returns by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. The @ompegularly assesses the likelihood of adverseomes resulting from these
examinations to determine the adequacy of its piomifor income taxes.

Accrued Bonuses

The Company pays bonuses to certain executive reamagf, field management and corporate employeesiluas or after giving
consideration to, a variety of financial performameeasures. Executive management, field manageandrdertain corporate employees’
bonuses are accrued throughout the year for paydugintg the first quarter of the following yearsea in part upon anticipated annual res
compared to annual budgets. In addition, the Campays discretionary bonuses to certain employekieh are not related to budget
performance. Variances in actual results versugétadl amounts can have a significant impact ocdlmilations and therefore on the
estimates of the required accruals. Accordindlg,dctual earned bonuses may be materially différem the estimates used to determine
quarterly accruals.

Forward-looking Information

The Company’s growth prospects are influenced bwdbeconomic trends. The pace of customer ceggaiding programs, new product
launches and similar activities have a direct impaicthe need for information technology and engimg services. When the U.S. and
Canadian economies decline, the Company’s operpénigrmance could be adversely impacted. The Gompelieves that its fiscal
discipline, strategic focus on targeted verticatkats and diversification of service offerings poms some insulation from adverse
trends. However, declines in the economy couldltés the need for future cost reductions or clenig strategy.
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Forward-looking Information (Continued)

Additionally, changes in government regulationslda@sult in prohibition or restriction of certaiypes of employment services or the
imposition of new or additional employee benefitgnsing or tax requirements with respect to thaision of employment services that n
reduce RCM’s future earnings. There can be norassa that RCM will be able to increase the fees@dd to its clients in a timely manner
and in a sufficient amount to cover increased casta result of any of the foregoing.

The consulting and employment services marketghliiicompetitive with limited barriers to entry.ClR1 competes in global, national,
regional and local markets with numerous competitorll of the Company's service lines. Price petition in the industries the Company
serves is significant, and pricing pressures fromgetitors and customers are increasing. RCM egitlat the level of competition will
remain high in the future, which could limit RCMaility to maintain or increase its market shargmfitability.

Results of Operations (In thousands, except for eangs per share data)

Fiscal Years Ende

January 2, 201 December 27, 200

Amount % of Revenut Amount % of Revenut
Revenue! $189,39. 100.( $209,27 100.(
Cost of service 142 55¢ 75.% 155,30: 74.2
Gross profit 46,83 2470 53,97¢ 25.¢
Selling, general and administrati 43,88t 23.1 46,56¢ 22.%
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,621 0.¢ 2,067 1.C
Bad debi- note receivabl - - 6,09( 2.8
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass - - 43,31¢ 20.7
Total operating expen: 45,50¢ 24.C 98,04( 46.€
Operating income (los! 1,32¢ 0.7 (44,065 (21.))
Other income (expense), r 9,78( 5.2 (29¢) (0.7)
Income (loss) before income tax 11,10¢ 5.¢ (44,367 (21.2)
Income tax expense (benel 4,18 2.2 (4,55%) 2.2
Net income (loss $6,92: 3.7 ($39,809 (19.0

The above summary is not a presentation of restitbperations under generally accepted accountiimgiples in the United States of
America and should not be considered in isolatioasoan alternative to results of operations agdination of the Company’s performance.

The Company follows a 52/53 week fiscal reportiatendar ending on the Saturday closest to DeceBibeilhe fiscal year ended January 2,
2010 had fifty-three weeks and the fiscal year dridecember 27, 2008 had fifty-two weeks.
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Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2010 Compared to Fistdear Ended December 27, 2008

Revenues. Revenues decreased 9.5%, or $19.9 million, fefigtal year ended January 2, 2010 as comparthe teame period in the prior
year (the“comparable prior year period”). Revenues decr@&d&.6 million in the Information Technology segmencreased $3.0 million
in the Engineering segment, and decreased $7.®mill the Commercial segment. Management ateibthe overall decrease to a
weakening of the general economy offset by revefmoes acquisitions made in 2008 and 2009 (see Fdet#h in the financial

statements). The Company believes that its revdaakne correlates to other similar business ses/companies, particularly in its
Information Technology and Commercial segmentsveRaes that were attributable to acquisitions wiicturred in the Information
Technology segment in 2008 and 2009 contributed2@lion in the fiscal year ended January 2, 288@ompared to $21.1 million in the
comparable prior year period.

Cost of Services. Cost of services decreased 8.2%, or $12.7 mjlfiemthe fiscal year ended January 2, 2010 as epeapto the comparable
prior year period. The decrease in cost of sesweas primarily due to the overall decrease inmaes. Cost of services as a percentage of
revenues increased to 75.3% for the fiscal yeae@ddnuary 2, 2010 from 74.2% for the comparalite pear period. This increase was
primarily due to increased unbilled labor costsdonsultants (i.e., a decrease in utilization #4abie resources) and softness in pricing in the
Company’s Information Technology segment.

Sdlling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative (“SGA”) expes decreased 5.8%, or $2.7 million, for the fiscal
year ended January 2, 2010 as compared to the cabiparior year period. The decrease in SGA exgemvas primarily due to a reduct

in selling (primarily commissions and salaries paidalespersons) and other costs associated withexall decrease in revenues offset by
additional SGA expenses incurred in connection witee acquisitions subsequent to February 28,.28@A expenses that were attributable
to acquisitions which occurred in the Informatioechnology segment in 2008 and 2009 contributed &#libn in the fiscal year ended
January 2, 2010 as compared to $4.3 million incthraparable prior year period. As a percentagewdnues, SGA expenses were 23.1% for
the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010 as compar2®.8% for the comparable prior year period. ifteease as a percentage of revenues is
primarily due to the overall decrease in revenues.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased 21.6%0a¥ million, for the fiscal year ended Januar@10 as
compared to the comparable prior year period.

Bad Debt - Note Receivable. On February 26, 2008, the Company accepted a psomgigiote from a customer for $7.4 million in payrnef
a like amount of accounts receivable from thataustr. The customer paid $1.3 million through ABfl 2008 at which point management
of the Company concluded that the customer wasggoiefault on its May 1, 2008 installment paymeRtiring 2008 the Company wrote
off the note receivable.
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Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2010 Compared to Fist&ear Ended December 27, 2008 (Continued)

Goodwill and I ntangible Asset I mpairment Expense. During 2008, the Company recorded goodwill artdrigible asset impairment expense
of $43.3 million. The Company is required to pemficgoodwill and intangible asset impairment test@bleast an annual basis. Application
of the goodwill and intangible asset impairmentgesquires significant judgments, including estioraof future cash flows, which are
dependent on internal forecasts, estimation ofahg-term rate of growth for the businesses, ttefuldife over which cash flows will occur
and determination of the Company’s weighted avecage of capital. Changes in these estimates ssuhaptions could materially affect the
determination of fair value and/or conclusions oondwill or intangible asset impairment for eacharing unit. Goodwill at January 2, 2010
and December 27, 2008 was $8.3 million and $6.8anjlrespectively. Intangible assets at Jan2a2010 and December 27, 2008 were
$0.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively. Them@pany determined there was no further impairme2009. Therefore no impairment
charges were recognized.

Other Income (Expense). Other income (expense) consists of interest esgaamet of interest income and gains and lossésreign
currency transactions and, in 2009, the proceeuts & legal settlement. The change in other inc@rpense) was primarily due to a $9.8
million legal settlement in 2009 (see footnote d The financial statements).

Income Tax. Income tax expense was $4.2 million for the figemr ended January 2, 2010 as compared to ammtax benefit of $4.6
million in the comparable prior year period. Thenge was principally attributable to an increasmc¢ome before taxes, which included a
$9.8 million legal settlement in the fiscal yeaded January 2, 2010. The comparable prior yeangércluded an expense for a write-off of
a $6.1 million note receivable and a loss on immpairt of goodwill and intangible assets of $43.3ianl The effective tax rate was 37.7%
for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010 as comdpara benefit of 10.3% in the comparable pri@ry®eriod. The comparable prior year
period effective tax rate was lower due to perma@®AP to tax differences associated with the $48ilion goodwill and intangible asset
impairment charge in the comparable prior yearqukri
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Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2010 Compared to Fist&ear Ended December 27, 2008 (Continued)
Segment Discussion (See Footnote 14)
Information Technology

Information Technology revenues of $87.9 millior2i@09 decreased $15.6 million, or 15.0%, as contpiar¢he comparable prior year
period. The decrease in revenue was primarilybattible to a weakening of the general economyebfiy acquisitions in 2008 and

2009. The Company believes that reductions intabppending in the Company's geographic markets kmnificantly reduced the demand
for the Company's Information Technology servicBevenues that were attributable to acquisitionshvbccurred in the Information
Technology segment in 2008 and 2009 contributed2@lion in the fiscal year ended January 2, 288@ompared to $21.1 million in the
comparable prior year period. The Information Texthgy segment operating loss was $2.5 millionasgared to an operating loss of $35.6
million for the comparable prior year period. Tgvéor year comparable period had an impairmentoafdyvill and intangible assets of $35.1
million.

Engineering

Engineering revenues of $62.2 million in 2009 irmsed $3.0 million, or 5.0%, as compared to the @atge prior year period. The increase
in revenue was primarily attributable to increase®venues from several major customers as cordgare comparable prior year

period. The Engineering segment operating incormg $2.7 million as compared to an operating loskl@f0 million for the comparable
prior year period. The comparable prior year pkoperating income was $3.3 million before bad delie receivable and impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets. The decrease @maijmg income before bad debt-note receivablempdirment of goodwill and intangible
assets was primarily due to a higher allocatiooaporate selling, general and administrative castsompared to the comparable prior year
period.

Commercial

Commercial revenues of $39.3 million in 2009 deseeb$7.3 million, or 15.7%, as compared to the amaige prior year period. The
decrease in revenue was principally attributable weeakening of the general economy and reduceauiéfor the Company's Commercial
services, in particular, services provided by tleenpany's light industrial staffing unit. The Comga light industrial staffing unit primarily
operates in Southern California and services mas#gufacturing and retail clients. The Companyevek that the southern California rec
and its manufacturing and retail industries hawenb&gnificantly impacted by negative economic disenThe Commercial segment operating
income was $1.2 million as compared to $2.5 millonthe comparable prior year period. The de@@a®perating income was primarily
due to the decrease in revenues.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table summarizes the major captiansifthe Company’s Consolidated Statements of ChshsHin thousands):

Fiscal Years Ende

January 2, December 27,
2010 2008
Cash provided by (used ir
Operating Activities $16,39: ($4,807)
Investing Activities ($1,650) ($10,369)
Financing Activities ($4,81)) $4,95¢

Operating Activities

Operating activities provided $16.4 million of cdeh the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010 as cozdda using $4.8 million in the
comparable prior year period. The change in cashiged by (used in) operating activities in 200&svprimarily attributable to net income
$6.9 million, decreases in accounts receivabledmfierred income tax assets, offset by decreassscunts payable and accrued expenses
and accrued payroll and related costs. Net incoereased primarily due to a legal settlement 08%8illion in the thirteen week period
ended March 28, 2009. Accounts receivable decdeasmarily due to decreases in revenues and addifly from an increased focus by the
Company to collect outstanding accounts receivabgefaster rate.

I nvesting Activities

Investing activities used $1.7 million for the fidyear ended January 2, 2010 as compared to #iilidn for the comparable prior year
period. The decrease in the use of cash for imgsattivities for 2009 as compared to the comgarab08 period was primarily attributable
to decreased expenditures for acquisitions andeptyppnd equipment. The Company made one acquisitifiscal 2009 and two
acquisitions in 2008 (See footnote 4 to the finahsiatements).

Financing Activities

In 2009, financing activities principally consistefireducing debt by $4.9 million. The Companysvedle to reduce debt due to the
generation of $16.3 million in cash from operataggivities. In 2008, financing activities princliyaconsisted of borrowing $9.1 million fro
the line of credit to finance acquisitions (Seetfimbe 4 to the financial statements) and the balaves used to fund working capital
requirements.

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to & dggeement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania,raded and restated effective February
20, 2009, which provides for a $15 million revolgioredit facility and includes a sub-limit of $510llion for letters of credit (the “Revolving
Credit Facility”). Borrowings under the Revolvi@edit Facility bear interest at one of two alteéiverates, as selected by the Company at
each incremental borrowing. These alternatives(grelBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate), plyspéicable margin, or (ii) the agent
bank's prime rate. The Company also pays unuseddies based on the amount of the Revolving CFediility that is not drawn.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge of

the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolving Cré&dicility also contains various financial and rfarancial covenants, such as restrictions on
the Company’s ability to pay dividends. The RewrdvCredit Facility expires in August 2011.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Financing Activities (Continued)

The weighted average interest rates under the RiegoCredit Facility for the fiscal year ended Janu2, 2010 and December 27, 2008 were
2.2% and 3.8%, respectively. The majority of basirggs in 2009 and 2008 were subject to alterndiivel BOR (London Interbank Offered
Rate), plus applicable margin on contracts of 3@sda more. During the fiscal year ended JanuaB020 and December 27, 2008, the
Company'’s outstanding borrowings ranged from $4.9 million and $-0- million to $10.5 millionespectively. At January 2, 2010 and
December 27, 2008, there were $0.0 million and $4t8tanding borrowings under this facility, redpasty. At January 2, 2010, there were
letters of credit outstanding for $1.6 million. 2dnuary 2, 2010, the Company had availability fdigonal borrowings under the Revolving
Credit Facility of $13.4 million.

The Company anticipates that its primary uses pitakin future periods will be for working capitalirposes. Funding for any long-term and
short-term capital requirements as well as futwouaitions will be derived from one or more of Revolving Credit Facility, funds
generated through operations or future financiaggactions. The Company is subject to legal pdinge and claims that arise from time to
time in the ordinary course of its business, whity or may not be covered by insurance. Were &wvarable final outcome to occur, there
exists the possibility of a material adverse imgadhe Company's financial position, liquidity datine results of operations for the period in
which the effect becomes reasonably estimable.

The Company's business strategy is to achieve grbath internally through operations and externdilpugh strategic acquisitions. The
Company from time to time engages in discussiortls patential acquisition candidates. As the sizthefCompany and its financial
resources increase however, acquisition opporasigquiring significant commitments of capital naaige. In order to pursue such
opportunities, the Company may be required to imtalot or issue potentially dilutive securitieshie future. No assurance can be given as to
the Company’s future acquisition and expansion dpjpdties or how such opportunities will be finadce

The Company has three active acquisition agreemermseby future contingent consideration may beezhiand paid (NuSoft, MBH and
PSG as described in Footnote 4 in the financiééstants). In connection with these acquisitions,Gompany may be obligated to pay
contingent consideration to the sellers provided the acquired businesses achieve certain eartarggts over periods ranging from two to
four years following the acquisition. In genetak contingent consideration amounts fall into tategories: (a) Deferred Consideration -
fixed amounts due if the acquisition achieves @& lbegel of earnings which has been determinedeatitiie of acquisition and (b) Earnouts —
amounts payable that are not fixed and are basédeogrowth in excess of the base level earnings.

The Company’s outstanding Deferred Consideratidigations potentially due after January 2, 2010ichtrelate to the NuSoft, MBH and
PSG acquisitions, could result in the following rimaxm Deferred Consideration payments (in thousands)

Year Endinc Amoun
January 1, 201 $2,80(
December 31, 201 1,65(
Thereafte 85(
Maximum deferred consideratic $5,30(

The Company cannot estimate the Deferred Considarpayments for the years after January 2, 2010 any certainty. However, the
Company believes that any payments that may be foadlee fiscal year ending January 1, 2011 will exceed $0.5 million. Earnouts, if
any, cannot be estimated with any certainty angliak are not included above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Financing Activities (Continued)

The Company does not currently have material comanits for capital expenditures and does not cuyranticipate entering into any such
commitments during the next 12 months. The Comiganwyrrent commitments consist primarily of leabbgations for office space. The
Company believes that its capital resources afecsift to meet its present obligations and thaske incurred in the normal course of
business for the next 12 months.

The Company announced on February 3, 2010 th&ag&sd of Directors had approved a program to rdmse up to $7.5 million of t
Companys outstanding shares of common stock from timéne tover the subsequent 12 months, depending oketnaonditions, sha
price and other factors. The repurchases may be mmadhe open market, in block trades or otherwidge program may be suspende
discontinued at any time.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had short terfarced tax assets of $0.7 million and total loewgt net deferred income tax assets of
$3.8 million. The short term deferred tax asseitmarily represent timing differences for GAAP erge accruals not deductible for tax
purposes. The long term deferred tax assets mmpréee tax effect of temporary differences for @®AP versus tax amortization of
acquisitions made in prior periods. Realizatibdeferred tax assets is dependent upon the liketiithat future taxable income will be
sufficient to realize these benefits over time, Hredeffectiveness of tax planning strategies énrélevant tax jurisdictions. In the event that
actual results differ from these estimates andsassents, valuation allowances may be required.

The Company leases office facilities and variousiggent under non-cancelable leases expiring awsidates through September
2015. Certain leases are subject to escalatiarsetabased upon changes in various factors. Thienomin future annual operating lease
commitments for leases with non-cancelable ternexaess of one year, exclusive of operating esoalaharges, are as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Years Amount
2010 $3,84:
2011 3,17¢
2012 2,017
2013 791
2014 147

Thereaftel 96
Total $10,06¢

Significant employment agreements are as follows:

Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with iisf €xecutive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt ¢:NKopyt”), which currently
provides for an annual base salary of $625,00008mer customary benefits. In addition, the agre@rpeovides that Mr. Kopyt's annual
bonus be based on EBITDA, defined as earnings bdfiterest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatibime agreement is for a rolling term of
three years, which automatically extends each fgeaan additional one-year period on February 28axth year. The agreement expires on
February 28, 2013. The employment agreementrnsiteble by the Company upon Mr. Kopyt's death sadility, or for “good and
sufficient cause,” as defined in the agreement.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Financing Activities (Continued)

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with Mr. Kopyt, amended on December 12, 200cbmply with the requirements
of section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of6l@8e "Benefits Agreement”). Pursuant to the Baaefgreement, following a Change
Control (as defined therein), the remaining ternViof Kopyt's employment is extended for five ye@ire "Extended Term"). If Mr. Kopyt's
employment is terminated thereafter by the Comphgr than for cause, or by Mr. Kopyt for good mraéincluding, among other things, a
material change in Mr. Kopyt's salary, title, rejpay responsibilities or a change in office locatishich requires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), then
the following provisions take effect: the Compasybligated to pay Mr. Kopyt a lump sum equal dalary and bonus for the remainder of
the Extended Term; and the Company shall be okl pay to Mr. Kopyt the amount of any excisedagociated with the benefits provi

to Mr. Kopyt under the Benefits Agreement. If siactermination had taken place as of January 2,,20L.Kopyt would have been entitled

to cash payments of approximately $5.7 million (esgnting salary and excise tax payments).

Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, amended on December 12, 2007 to comjitly the requirements of section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the &ance Agreement”). The agreement provides fdaitepayments to be made to Mr.
Kopyt and for the continuation of Mr. Kopyt's empte benefits for a specified time after his serwiith the Company is terminated other
than “for cause,” as defined in the Severance Agesg. Amounts payable to Mr. Kopyt under the Sanee Agreement would be offset and
reduced by any amounts received by Mr. Kopyt dftetermination of employment under his employnsgreement and the Benefits
Agreement, which are supplemented and not supatdmdthe Severance Agreement. If Mr. Kopyt hadniteeminated as of January 2,
2010, then under the terms of the Severance Agneeimed after offsetting any amounts that wouldehbbeen received under his current
employment and termination benefits agreementsychéd have been entitled to cash payments of appately $3.9 million, inclusive of
employee benefits.

Impact of Inflation

Consulting, staffing, and project services are galhepriced based on markps on prevailing rates of pay, and as a resulableto generall
maintain their relationship to direct labor cosBermanent placement services are priced as adaraftsalary levels of the job candidates.

The Company’s business is labor intensive; theegfibre Company has a high exposure to increasiaighlcare benefit costs. The Company
attempts to compensate for these escalating ao#tsbusiness cost models and customer pricingadsging along some of these increased
healthcare benefit costs to its customers and grapk however, the Company has not been able soopeall increases. The Company is
continuing to review its options to further conttioése costs, which the Company does not believeepresentative of general inflationary
trends. Otherwise, inflation has not been a megnirdactor in the Company’s operations.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issued its final Statement of Finandacounting Standards (SFAS) No.
168, “The FASB Accounting Standards Codification &ime Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountinmé&iples a replacement of FASB
Statement No. 162.” SFAS No. 168 made the FASB Anting Standards Codification (the Codificationg #ingle source of U.S. GAAP
used by nongovernmental entities in the preparatfdimancial statements, except for rules andrpretive releases of the SEC under
authority of federal securities laws, which arerses of authoritative accounting guidance for SE@istrants. The Codification is meant to
simplify user access to all authoritative accouptimidance by reorganizing U.S. GAAP pronouncemiendsroughly 90 accounting topics
within a consistent structure; its purpose is natreate new accounting and reporting guidance Cddification supersedes all existing non-
SEC accounting and reporting standards and wastietdor the Company beginning September 26, 2@88llowing SFAS No. 168, the
Board will not issue new standards in the form @ft@nents, FASB Staff Positions, or Emerging IsSissk Force Abstracts; instead, it will
issue Accounting Standards Updates. The FASB willconsider Accounting Standards Updates as atstigd in their own right; these
updates will serve only to update the Codificatiprmvide background information about the guidamacel provide the bases for conclusions
on the change(s) in the Codification.

In December 2007, the FASB updated “Business Coatioims.” Among other requirements, the updateireguan acquirer to recognize the
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and angamtrolling interest in the acquiree at the adtjois date, measured at their fair values as of
that date, with limited exceptions. The update atgpiires a.) costs incurred to effect the acqaisio be recognized separately from the
acquisition as period costs; b.) the acquirer togeaize restructuring costs that the acquirer especincur, but is not obligated to incur,
separately from the business combination; andcacguirer to recognize assets and liabilities mgslarising from contractual contingencies
as of the acquisition date, measured at their agn-date fair values. Other key provisionshi§tupdate include the requirement to
recognize the acquisition-date fair values of refeand development assets separately from goodmdlithe requirement to recognize
changes in the amount of deferred tax benefitsateatecognizable due to the business combinatieittier income from continuing
operations in the period of the combination or cisein contributed capital, depending on the cinstances. The Company adopted this
update as of December 28, 2008 and has applipdotgsions prospectively to business combinatitwas have occurred after adoption.

In April 2009, the FASB issued “Accounting for Assécquired and Liabilities Assumed in a BusinessnBination That Arise from
Contingencies.” This update requires that assetsieed and liabilities assumed in a business coattain that arise from contingencies be
recognized at fair value if fair value can be rewdny estimated. If fair value cannot be reasonabtimated, the asset or liability would
generally be recognized in accordance with “Accmgntor Contingencies,” and “Reasonable Estimatibthe Amount of a Loss.” Further,
the FASB decided to remove the subsequent accaugtiiiance for assets and liabilities arising frmontingencies, and carry forward
without significant revision the guidance in “Busgs Combinations.” This update is effective fareds or liabilities arising from
contingencies in business combinations for whiehabquisition date is on or after the beginnintheffirst annual reporting period beginning
on or after December 15, 2008. The Company addptedipdate effective December 28, 2008.

In April 2009, the FASB issued “Interim Disclosurasout Fair Value of Financial Instruments.” Thixlate amends “Disclosures about Fair
Value of Financial Instruments,” to require discltes about fair value of financial instrumentsifdaerim reporting periods of publicly traded
companies as well as in annual financial statemdimis update also amends Interim Financial Repgytio require those disclosures in
summarized financial information at interim repogtiperiods. This update became effective for theriim period ending June 27, 2009 and
did not have a material impact on the Company'salifated financial statements.
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards (Continued)

In October 2009, the FASB issued “Revenue Arrangesnwith Multiple Deliverables.This statement provides principles for allocatiates
consideration among multiple-element revenue agaremts with an entity’s customers, allowing moexithility in identifying and
accounting for separate deliverables under an geraent. This update introduces an estimated sqdlicg method for valuing the elements
of a bundled arrangement if vendor-specific objectvidence or third-party evidence of selling @i not available, and significantly
expands related disclosure requirements. This atdrid effective on a prospective basis for revearu@ngements entered into or materially
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after Jd®e 2010. Alternatively, adoption may be on aaspective basis, and early application is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluatingithpact of adopting this pronouncement.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changésterest rates relates primarily to the Companwgstment portfolio and debt
instruments, which primarily consist of its RevalgiCredit Facility. The Company does not have dewyvative financial instruments in its
portfolio. The Company places its investmentsistriuments that meet high credit quality standafidse Company is adverse to principal
loss and ensures the safety and preservation iofvigsted funds by limiting default risk, marketkiand reinvestment risk. As of January 2,
2010, the Company'’s investments consisted of cadhraoney market funds. The Company does not tseest rate derivative instruments
to manage its exposure to interest rate changesseftly the impact of a 10% (approximately 90 $asints) increase in interest rates on its
variable debt (using an incremental borrowing ratedld have a relatively nominal impact on the Camys results of operations. The
Company does not expect any material loss witheetdp its investment portfolio.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, together with the repbthe Company’s Registered Public Accounting Fibegins on page F-1.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, under the supervisiomiéhdhe participation of the Company’s Chief Eniee Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Comfmdigclosure controls and procedures (as defindRule 13a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under th
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis report. Based upon that evaluation, theeClEkecutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that those disclosure controls procedures as of the end of the period coverdadibyeport were functioning effectively
to provide reasonable assurance that informatiquired to be disclosed by the Company in the repbst it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegoadted within the time periods specified in 8tC'’s rules and forms and is
accumulated and communicated to the Company’s neameugt, including its principal executive and prpadifinancial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate, towltimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

A controls system, no matter how well designed @merated, cannot provide absolute assurance thatjectives of the controls system are
met, and no evaluation of controls can provide kite@ssurance that all control issues and ins&ot#aud, if any, within a company have
been detected.

Managemens Report on Internal Control over Financial Repayti

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting for the company. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process desijto provide reasonable assurance regardin@liability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Our system of internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maammee of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjule reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparatibnasfcial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are beande only in accordance with authorizations of manzent and directors of the compa
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regardiaggmtion or timely detection of unauthorized acigjiois, use or disposition of the compan
assets that could have a material effect on tteméial statements.

Management performed an assessment of the effaeigeof our internal control over financial repagtas of January 2, 2010 based upon
criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framewoskued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatibtise Treadway Commission
("COSO"). Based on this assessment, managemenmirdie¢el that the company's internal control oveafficial reporting was effective as of
January 2, 2010, based on the criteria in InteQuadtrol-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

There have been no changes in the Company’s intesn&rol over financial reporting that occurredidg the Company’s most recent fiscal
guarter and that have materially affected, or aesonably likely to materially affect, the Companiyiternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by Item 10 shall be in@ddn the 2010 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 shall be in@ddn the 2010 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requivgdtem 12 shall be included in the 2010 ProxyteStent.

The table below presents certain information camiogrsecurities issuable in connection with eqadympensation plans that have been
approved by the Company's shareholders and thatiatbeen approved by the Company's shareholders.

Number of securities remaining
available for issuance under
Number of securities to be issue Weighted-average exercise price equity compensation plans,
upon exercise of outstanding of outstanding options, warrants excluding securities reflected in
Plan category options, warrants and rights and rights column (a)

@) (b) ©

Equity compensation plans
approved by
security holder 1,564,594 $3.87 426,100
Equity compensation plans
not approved by
security holder

Total 1,564,594 $3.87 426,100

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 shall be in@ddn the 2010 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 shall be in@ddn the 2010 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@ 1.and 2. Financial Statement Schedules See "Index to Financial Statements and Schedales-1.

3. See Item (b) below

(b)  Exhibits

3)(@)

(3)(b)

3)(c)

(3)(d)

(4)(@)

*(10)(a)

(10)(b)

*(10)(c)

*(10)(d)

*(10)(e)

*(10)(f)

Articles of Incorporation, as amended; npavated by reference to Exhibit 3(a) to the Regrgts Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 1€

Certificate of Amendment of Articles lofcorporation; incorporated by reference to Extwbto the Registrant's Proxy
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with theuSities and Exchange Commission on January Z8..

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of loiporation; incorporated by reference to ExhibibBhe Registrant's Proxy
Statement, dated February 6, 1996, filed with theuSities and Exchange Commission on January Z8..

Amended and Restated Bylaws; incorporateteference to Exhibit 3(d) to the Registrant's AalnrReport on Form
1C-K for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2(

Registration Rights Agreement, dated Mdrth1996, by and between RCM Technologies, Inc.taadormer
shareholders of The Consortium; incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit (c)(2) to the Registrant's Curfeeport on Form
8-K dated March 19, 1996, filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission on March 20, 1¢

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1992 Incentive t@ption Plan; incorporated by reference to Exhibtb the Registrant's
Proxy Statement, dated March 9, 1992, filed with $recurities and Exchange Commission on March ®..

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1994 Non-employee€tor Stock Option Plan; incorporated by refegetathe appendix to
the Registrant's Proxy Statement, dated March @34 Ifiled with the Securities and Exchange Comimisen March
28, 1994

RCM Technologies, Inc. 1996 Executive &t@ption Plan, dated August 15, 1996; incorpordigdeference to
Exhibit 10(]) to the Registrant’s Annual Reporteorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31,61 9%ed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January®®, (the*1996 1(-K”").

RCM Technologies, Inc. 2000 Employee Stiodentive Plan, dated January 6, 2000; incorpdrayereference to
Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement, datarch 3, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exuie
Commission on February 28, 20(

Second Amended and Restated Terminatioefs Agreement, dated March 18, 1997, betweeiRégistrant and
Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference to Exhibifd)to the Registrant’s Registration Statement omtS-1 (SEC
File No. 33:-23753), filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdéssimn on March 21, 199

Amended and Restated Employment Agreentaigd November 30, 1996, between the Registnatettéc Design,
Inc. and Leon Kopyt; incorporated by reference xbikit 10(g) to the 1996 -K.
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)

Exhibits (Continued)

(10)(9)

*(10)(h)

*(10)(i)

(10)()

(10)(k)

(10)(1)

(10)(m)

(10)(n)

*(10)(0)

*(10)(p)

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreematggdday 31, 2002, between RCM Technologies, Ind.al of
its Subsidiaries with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvaam Administrative Agent and Arranger; incorpodaby reference
to Exhibit 10 to the Registrant’s Quarterly RepmrtForm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20i@2, With the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 52 20@"“ Second Quarter 2002 -Q").

Severance Agreement, dated June 10, 2@@&een RCM Technologies, Inc. and Leon Kopyt; ipotated by
reference to Exhibit 10a to the Second Quarter 2@-Q.

Exhibit A to Severance Agreement Generaleiase; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10fhéoSecond Quarter
2002 1(-Q.

Amendment and Modification to Amendmad Restated Loan and Security Agreement, datedrbleer 30, 2002,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adstrative
Agent and Arranger; incorporated by reference thilik 10(k) to the Registrant’'s Annual Report orrfdLOK for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, filed withSkeurities and Exchange Commission on Februar@@#3, as
amended on March 3, 2003 (12002 1(-K").

Second Amendment and Modification tménded and Restated Loan and Security Agreemeet] &abruary 26,
2003, between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all oSitbsidiaries and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvani@disinistrative
Agent and Arranger; incorporated by reference thilk10(l) to 2002 1-K).

Third Amendment and Modification to Amermdend Restated Loan and Security Agreement, datéabér 1, 2003,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdilasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adsiiiafive Agen
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExI8BiH to the Registrant’'s Quarterly Report on Fofvfor the
quarter ended September 30, 2003, filed with theuStées and Exchange Commission on November 632

Fourth Amendment and Modification t;m&nded and Restated Loan and Security Agreemeet] daly 23, 2004,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdiasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adstiaiive Agen
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExHibifa) to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on F&O¥Q for the
quarter ended July 3, 2004, filed with the Seasitind Exchange Commission on August 5, 2

Fifth Amendment and Modification to Ameudend Restated Loan and Security Agreement datgdigiw, 2006,
between RCM Technologies, Inc. and all of its Sdilasies and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania as Adsiriafive Agen
and Arranger; incorporated by reference to ExHibifa) to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Fa¥Q for the
quarter ended July 1, 2006, filed with the Secesiind Exchange Commission on August 10, 2

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2tiDthe Amended and Restated Employment Agreemetgres into on
November 30, 1996, between Leon Kopyt and RCM Telduies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to Exhiifitl to th
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Ddmemi2, 2007, filed with the Securities and Excleang
Commission on December 12, 2007 (“December 2007-K").

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2tfhe Second Amended and Restated TerminationflBeAgreement,

made March 18, 1997, between Leon Kopyt and RCMiiielogies, Inc.; incorporated by reference to EXHib.2 to
the December 2007-K.
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (CONTINU ED)

(b)

Exhibits (Continued)

*(10)(q)

*(10)()

*(10)(u)

(10)(v)

(21)
23.1
23.2

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Amendment No. 1, dated December 12, 2tfhe Severance Agreement, entered into on Jun20D2, between
Leon Kopyt and RCM Technologies, Inc.; incorporadbgdeference to Exhibit 10.3 to the December 28-K.

The RCM Technologies, Inc. 2007 OmnibusiiBqCompensation Plan; incorporated by referencérinex A to the
Registrant’s Proxy Statement, dated April 20, 200&d with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorpril 19,
2007.

Separation and Release Agreement, dated Augug0P8; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1he Registrant'
Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 21, 201&d fwith the Securities and Exchange CommissioAogust 27,
2008.

Second Amended and Restated Loan aodrBy Agreement dated as of February 19, 2008@vden RCM
Technologies, Inc. and all of its Subsidiariesjzeits Bank of Pennsylvania as Administrative Agam Arranger and
the Financial Institutions Named therein as Lendarporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 19, 262 with the Securities and Exchange Commissinriebruary
25, 2009

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. (Filed herew
Consent of Amper, Politziner & Mattia, LLP. (Filbéarewith)
Consent of Grant Thornton LLP. (Filed herewi

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Regpd by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchahgfeof 1934, as
amended. (Filed herewit

Certifications of Chief Financial OfficRequired by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ErghaAct of 1934, as
amended. (Filed herewit

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer Reggd by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchafigeof 1934, as
amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “file"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934,
as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilitthat section. Further, this exhibit shall notdeemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under Sezurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Séesifiixchange Act
of 1934, as amended.) (Filed herew

Certifications of Chief Financial Officer Rerpd by Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchafsgeof 1934, as
amended. (This exhibit shall not be deemed “fil&d”"purposes of Section 18 of the Securities ErRgleaAct of 1934,
as amended, or otherwise subject to the liabilitthat section. Further, this exhibit shall notdeemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under 8ezurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Séesifixchange Act
of 1934, as amended.) (Filed herew

*Constitutes a management contract or compensalamyop arrangemen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

RCM Technologies, Inc.

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Leon Kopy!
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer anceBior

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Leon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer (Pipat Executive
Officer) and Directo

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretamn@pal Financial
and Accounting Officer

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Norman S. Bersc
Norman S. Berson
Director

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Robert B. Ker
Robert B. Kerr
Director

Date: March 8, 201 By:/s/ Lawrence Needlem:
Lawrence Needleman
Director
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008

(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $10,94: $81¢
Accounts receivable, n 46,35 55,77(
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 2,671 3,012
Deferred income tax asst 70t 2,204
Total current asse 60,67" 61,80!
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depregi
and amortization of $6,460 (January 2, 2010) and
$5,692 (December 27, 20C 4,76¢ 5,58¢
Other asset:
Deposits 212 264
Goodwill 8,26( 6,53¢
Intangible assets, n 464 27€
Deferred income tax asst 3,82¢ 4,37¢
Total other asse’ 12,76« 11,45¢
Total asset $78,20! $78,84:
Current liabilities:
Borrowings under line of crec $ - $4,90(
Accounts payable and accrued expel 7,501 8,37t
Accrued payroll and related co: 6,512 9,671
Income taxes payab - 53¢
Total current liabilities 14,01 23,49(
Contingent consideratic 89: -
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 5,000,000 stardwrized
no shares issued or outstand - -
Common stock, $0.05 par value; 40,000,000 sharbeoazed;
12,960,778 and 12,774,026 shares issued and aditggan
at January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008, respBc 64¢ 63¢
Additional paic-in capital 107,26 106,78t
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,267 72C
Accumulated defici (45,879 (52,796
Total stockholders' equi 63,30 55,35!
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $78,20¢ $78,84:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statement




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008

(Dollarsin thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Revenue: $189,39: $209,27
Cost of service 142,55¢ 155,30:
Gross profit 46,83t 53,97¢
Operating costs and expen:
Selling, general and administrati 43,88t 46,56¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,621 2,067
Bad debr note receivabl - 6,09(
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass - 43,31¢
45,50¢ 98,04(
Operating income (lost 1,32¢ (44,06°%)
Other income (expens
Interest (expense) income, 1 (55) (230
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transacti 85 (75)
Legal settlemer 9,75( -
Other - 7
9,78( (29¢)
Income (loss) before income tax 11,10¢ (44,367)
Income tax expense (benel 4,18 (4,55§)
Net income (loss $6,92: ($39,80Y
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common s
Net income (loss $0.5¢ ($3.1)
Weighted average number of common
shares outstandir 12,888,53 12,647,12
Weighted average number of common and common
equivalent shares outstandi 12,892,53 12,647,12

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statement




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stocl Paic-in Comprehensivi  Accumulatec
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

Balance, December 29, 2007 12,058,68 $60: $102,95: $1,48¢ ($12,99() $92,04¢
Issuance of stock under employee

stock purchase ple 15,331 1 55 - - 56
Translation adjustmel - - (764) - (764)
Stock based compensation expe - - 10C - - 100
Shares issued for acquired

companie! 700,00( 35 3,682 - - 3,717
Net loss - - - - (39,80%) (39,80%)
Balance, December 27, 2008 12,774,02 63¢ 106,78t 72C (52,796 55,351
Issuance of stock under employee

stock purchase ple 86,75: 4 79 - - 83
Translation adjustmel - - - 547 - 547
Stock based compensation expe - - 181 - - 181
Shares issued for acquired

company 100,00( 5 214 - - 219
Net income - - - 6,922 6,922
Balance, January 2, 2010 12,960,77 $64¢ $107,26. $1,267 ($45,879) $63,30:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Net income (loss $6,92: ($39,805
Foreign currency translation adjustm 547 (764,
Comprehensive income (los $7,46¢ ($40,569

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottfimancial statement

F-4




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss $6,92: ($39,804
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to r@esthcprovided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,62t 2,05¢
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass - 43,31t
Loss (gain) on disposal of ass 88 @)
Stock based compensation expe 181 10C
Provision for losses on (recovery from) accounteineable 11E (641)
Provision for losses on note receiva - 6,09(
Deferred income tax expense (bene 2,047 (5,869
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaissti
Accounts and note receivat 10,17: (10,27%)
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 643 (1,582)
Accounts payable and accrued expel (1,142 90¢€
Accrued payroll and related co: (3,386 1,36¢
Income taxes payab (87%) (463)
Total adjustment 9,46¢ 34,99¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 16,39’ (4,807
Cash flows from investing activitie
Property and equipment acquit (802) (2,667
Proceeds from equipment dispo - 25
Decrease (increase) in depo: 52 (138
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of working cag (900 (7,584
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,650 (10,364)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Sale of stock for employee stock purchase 83 55
Net (repayments) borrowings of line of cre (4,900 4,90(
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (4,81%) 4,95k
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbadnts 203 (617)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 10,127 (10,827
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 81F 11,64.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $10,94. $81t
Supplemental cash flow informatia
Cash paid for
Interest $67 $19:
Income taxe: $2,51( $2,48:
Non-cash investing activitie:
Issuance of common stock for acquired busil $21¢ $3,711
Contingent consideration recorded, not $89:¢ $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statement




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

RCM Technologies, Inc. (the "Company" or "RCM"gigremier provider of business and technology smiatdesigned to enhance and
maximize the operational performance of its custenierough the adaptation and deployment of advdhimdermation technology and
engineering services. Additionally, the Compangvides specialty staffing services through its Caruoial Services group. RCM'’s
offices are located in major metropolitan centarsaighout North America.

The consolidated financial statements are compo$éae accounts of the Company and its wholly advsebsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have baaimated in consolidation.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiegbform with current year presentation.

Use of Egtimates and Uncertainties

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the amounts reported in the conatditifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffenfrthese estimates.

Fiscal Periods

The reporting period for the Company is the Satyidasest to the last day in December. Fiscal 2888 represents the 53 weeks ended
January 2, 2010 and fiscal year 2008 represents2hveeeks ended December 27, 2008.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers its holdings of highly ligmdney-market instruments to be cash equivalernkgitecurities mature within 90
days from the date of acquisition. These investmare carried at cost, which approximates fain@alThe Companyg’cash balances ¢
maintained in accounts held by major banks andiiz institutions. At times, these balances megeed federally insured amounts. At
January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008, $0.1 m#ii@h$0.7 million, respectively, of cash and caghivalents were held in Canadian
banks.

Fair Value of Financial I nstruments
The Company'’s carrying value of financial instrursgrconsisting primarily of accounts receivableyragimates fair value. The

Company does not have any off-balance sheet finhimstruments. The Company does not have devivatioducts in place to manage
risks related to foreign currency fluctuations itsrforeign operations or for interest rate changes
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable are primarilyfdom trade customers. Credit is extended baseslvatuation of customers’
financial condition and, generally, collateral @ mequired. Accounts receivable payment termg &ad are stated in the financial
statements at amounts due from customers net af@mance for doubtful accounts. Accounts outstagdbnger than the payment ter
are considered past due. The Company determmaldtvance by considering a number of factordutfing the length of time trade
accounts receivable are past due, the Companysopieeloss history, the customer’s current abilitypay its obligation to the Company,
and the condition of the general economy and tdestry as a whole. The Company writes off accoteteivable when they become
uncollectible, and payments subsequently receivesuch receivables previously written off are desdlto bad debt expense.

Unbilled Accounts Receivable and Work-in-Process

Unbilled receivables primarily represent revenumsied whereby those services are ready to be fiflef the balance sheet ending
date. Work-inprocess primarily represents revenues earned woddéracts which the Company is contractually préetlifrom invoicing
until future dates as project milestones are redlizSee Footnote 2 for further details.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost netoofnalated depreciation and amortization and areegégted on the straiglitte methoc
at rates calculated to provide for retirement skts at the end of their estimated useful livelse Tompany's ERP software system,
installed in 1999 and upgraded in 2004, is beinyeldated over fifteen years. The Company's V@I&phone system, the installatior
which was substantially complete at the end of 2@9Being depreciated over seven years. All dffaedware and software as well as
furniture and office equipment is depreciated dixex years. Leasehold improvements are depreciatedthe shorter of the estimated
life of the asset or the lease term.

Goodwill

Gooduwill represents the premium paid over thevalue of the net tangible and intangible assetsie®d in business combinations. The
Company is required to perform a goodwill impairmist on at least an annual basis. Applicatiothefgoodwill impairment test
requires significant judgments including estimatidriuture cash flows, which is dependent on iré&forecasts, estimation of the long-
term rate of growth for the businesses, the udééubver which cash flows will occur and deterntina of weighted average cost of
capital. Changes in these estimates and assuramtiid materially affect the determination of feaue and/or conclusions on goodv
impairment for each reporting unit. The Compangdiects its annual goodwill impairment test as efldst day of the Company’s fiscal
November each year, or more frequently if indicaimfrimpairment exist. The Company periodicallglgmes whether any such
indicators of impairment exist. A significant anmbwf judgment is involved in determining if an iodtor of impairment has occurred.
Such indicators may include a sustained, signifidacline in share price and market capitalizateodecline in expected future cash
flows, a significant adverse change in legal factrin the business climate, unanticipated cortipetand/or slower expected growth
rates, among others. The Company compares thedfaie of each of its reporting units to their sjve carrying values and if the
carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds fair valae jmpairment loss is recognized:he Company determined there was no impair
in 2009.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in alzrore with “Accounting for the Impairment or Dispbef Long-Lived

Assets.” Management periodically reviews theydiag amounts of long-lived assets to determine iaeturrent events or
circumstances warrant adjustment to such carryinguats. Any impairment is measured by the amduattthe carrying value of such
assets exceeds their fair value, primarily basedstimated discounted cash flows. Considerableagement judgment is necessary to
estimate the fair value of assets. Assets to §igoded of are carried at the lower of their finahsiatement carrying amount or fair val
less cost to sell.

Software

In accordance with “Accounting for Costs of Compueftware Developed or Obtained for Internal Useftain costs related to the
development or purchase of internal-use softwagecapitalized and amortized over the estimateduligf of the software. During the
years ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2@808pompany capitalized approximately $244 and $&dpectively, for software
costs. At January 2, 2010 the net balance affgred@tion for all software costs capitalized was&

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbe’Accounting for Income Taxesihich requires an asset and liability apprc
of accounting for income taxes. “Accounting focdme Taxestequires assessment of the likelihood of realiiagefits associated wi
deferred tax assets for purposes of determininghveine valuation allowance is needed for such dedeiax assets. The Company an
wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries file a consolidatederal income tax return.

The Company also follows the provisions of “Accangtfor Uncertainty in Income Taxes” which presesba model for the recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expéotbd taken in a tax return, and provides guidamcderecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, disclosure and transitidinJanuary 2, 2010 the Company did not have agyifstant unrecognized tax benefits.
Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from several ssurthe Compang’ Engineering Services and Information TechnologyiSe:

segments perform consulting and project solutiaersises. All of the Companyg’segments perform staff augmentation service:
derive revenue from permanent placement fees. midjerity of the Company's revenues are invoiced time and materials basis.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Project Services - The Company recognizes revenues in accordante'Révenue Recognition” which clarifies applicatiohU.S.
generally accepted accounting principles to revdrarsactions. Project services are generallyigeavon a cost-plus, fixed-fee or time-
and-material basis. Typically, a customer willsmutrce a discrete project or activity and the Camgsssumes responsibility for the
performance of such project or activity. The Compeecognizes revenues and associated costs @ss lggsis as services are provided
to the customer and costs are incurred using ifd@rees. The Company, from time to time, entets aontracts requiring the
completion of specific deliverables. The Compargymecognize revenues on these deliverables aintleethe client accepts and
approves the deliverables. In instances wheregirggrvices are provided on a fixed-price bagisthe contract will extend beyond a 12-
month period, revenue is recorded in accordande tivé terms of each contract. In some instaneesnue is billed and recorded at the
time certain milestones are reached, as defindtkicontract. In other instances, revenue isialed recorded based upon contractual
rates per hour (i.e., percentage of completion)addition, some contracts contain “PerformancesF@mnuses) for completing a
contract under budget. Performance Fees, if aeyezrorded when the Company is reasonably cesfaiollection. Some contracts also
limit revenues and billings to maximum amountsouigion for contract losses, if any, are made agbriod such losses are
determined. For contracts where there is a delhler the work is not complete on a specific dedibde and the revenue is not
recognized, the costs are deferred. The assocdiattd are expensed when the related revenueadgirized.

Consulting and Saffing Services - Revenues derived from consulting and staffingises are recorded on a gross basis as services are
performed and associated costs have been incusieg employees of the Company. In these circurastrthe Company assumes the
risk of acceptability of its employees to its custrs. In certain cases, the Company may utilireratompanies and their employees to
fulfill customer requirements. In these casesCGbhepany receives an administrative fee for armapdpr, billing for, and collecting the
billings related to these companies. The custaspically responsible for assessing the workhese companies who have
responsibility for acceptability of their persontelthe customer. Under these circumstances, dinep@ny’s reported revenues are net of
associated costs (effectively recognizing the detiaistrative fee only).

Permanent Placement Services - The Company earns permanent placement fees fromding permanent placement services. Fees for
placements are recognized at the time the candidatenences employment. The Company guarantegsritsanent placements on a
prorated basis for 90 days. In the event a catglidanot retained for the 90-day period, the Comypaill provide a suitable replacement
candidate. In the event a replacement candidaiteotde located, the Company will provide a pratatfund to the client. An

allowance for refunds, based upon the Companytstiisil experience, is recorded in the financiatestents. Revenues are recorded on
a gross basis.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Concentration

During 2009, United Technologies Corporation actedrior 12.7% of the Company’s revenues and 22.2#eoCompany’s accounts
receivable. No other customer accounted for 10%hane of the Company’s revenues. The Company's treand twenty largest
customers accounted for approximately 30.0%, 3Gii#47.3%, respectively, of the Company's revefare2009.

During 2008, United Technologies Corporation actedrior 11.1% of the Company’s revenues and 17.6&eoCompany’s accounts
receivable. No other customer accounted for 10%hane of the Company’s revenues. The Company's treand twenty largest
customers accounted for approximately 27.1%, 33aB#044.0%, respectively, of the Company's revefare2008.

Foreign Currency Trandation

The functional currency of the Company’s Canadiglss&liary is the subsidiary’s local currency. Assand liabilities are translated at
period-end exchange rates. Income and expense é@sstranslated at weighted average rates of ageharevailing during the

year. Any translation adjustments are includethéaccumulated other comprehensive income ac@owtbckholders’

equity. Transactions executed in different curiencesulting in exchange adjustments are tramskttepot rates and resulting foreign
exchange transaction gains and losses are incindbd results of operations.

Comprehensive ncome

Comprehensive income consists of net income areidiorcurrency translation adjustments.

Per Share Data

Basic net income per share is calculated usingvtighted-average number of common shares outsiguadiring the period. Diluted net
income per share is calculated using the weightedage number of common shares plus dilutive patiectmmon shares outstanding
during the period. Potential dilutive common skarensist of stock options and other stock-basedd@dswnder the Company's stock
compensation plans, when their impact is dilutiBecause of the Company’s capital structure, glbreed earnings pertain to common
shareholders and no other adjustments are necessary

The number of common shares used to calculate badidiluted earnings per share for 2009 and 2088determined as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 2, December 27,
2010 2008
Basic shares outstandii 12,888,53 12,647,12
Dilutive effect of stock option 3,991 -
Dilutive shares 12,892,53 12,647,12
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
Per Share Data (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended January 2, 2010, there W&34,594 options not included in the calculattbcommon stock equivalents
because the exercise price of the options excetbéealverage market price during the year.

For the fiscal year ended December 27, 2008, tivere 1,069,900 options not included in the calomfadf common stock equivalents
because the exercise price of the options excetbdealverage market price during the year. Adaditily, 224,000 options that were at
less than the average market price were not indlidéhe calculation of common stock equivalentsase the options were anti-dilutive
as the Company is in a net loss position.

Share - Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based payment awastsordance with "Compensation - Stock Compémsadt The Company
recognizes share-based compensation based omaestaimption inputs within the Black-Scholes ModEhese assumption inputs are
used to determine an estimated fair value of shaded payment awards on the date of grant andreesubjective judgment. Because
employee stock options have characteristics siganitly different from those of traded options, &edause changes in the input
assumptions can materially affect the fair valuereste, the existing models may not provide a bdisingle measure of the fair value of
the employee stock options. Management assessesshimptions and methodologies used to calcudtiteaged fair value of stock-
based compensation on a regular basis. Circumestanay change and additional data may become bleadaer time, which could
result in changes to these assumptions and methgidsland thereby materially impact our fair vadeéermination. See Note 9 for
additional stock-based compensation information.

Common Stock Reserved

Unissued shares of common stock were reservetiddiotlowing purposes:

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Exercise of options outstandil 1,564,59. 1,293,90!
Future grants of optior 426,10( 699,29:
Total 1,990,69 1,993,19.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Eatetrtising expense was $864 and $1,110 for toalfissars 2009 and 2008,
respectively.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
New Accounting Standards

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢‘FASB”) issued its final Statement of Finandacounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 168, The FASB Accounting Standards Codification andHiierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Prineiph replacement
FASB Statement No. 162.” SFAS No. 168 made the FASBounting Standards Codification (the Codifica)ithe single source of U.S.
GAAP used by nongovernmental entities in the pragiam of financial statements, except for rules mmerpretive releases of the SEC
under authority of federal securities laws, which sources of authoritative accounting guidance&te registrants. The Codification is
meant to simplify user access to all authoritadigeounting guidance by reorganizing U.S. GAAP pworoements into roughly 90
accounting topics within a consistent structurgpitirpose is not to create new accounting and tiegajuidance. The Codification
supersedes all existing non-SEC accounting andtiegstandards and was effective for the Compagiriming September 26,

2009. Following SFAS No. 168, the Board will nsgue new standards in the form of Statements, F&ta8 Positions, or Emerging
Issues Task Force Abstracts; instead, it will is&oeounting Standards Updates. The FASB will natsider Accounting Standards
Updates as authoritative in their own right; thepdates will serve only to update the Codificatiprmvide background information abc
the guidance, and provide the bases for conclugiortee change(s) in the Codification.

In December 2007, the FASB updated “Business Coatioins.” Among other requirements, the updateireguan acquirer to recognize
the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed apdhancontrolling interest in the acquiree at thguasition date, measured at their fair
values as of that date, with limited exceptionse Tipdate also requires a.) costs incurred to effiecacquisition to be recognized
separately from the acquisition as period cosjshie. acquirer to recognize restructuring coststteacquirer expects to incur, but is not
obligated to incur, separately from the businesshination; and c.) an acquirer to recognize assaddiabilities assumed arising from
contractual contingencies as of the acquisitioe dakasured at their acquisition-date fair valu@ther key provisions of this update
include the requirement to recognize the acquisitlate fair values of research and developmentsassparately from goodwill and the
requirement to recognize changes in the amounéfefred tax benefits that are recognizable dubddtisiness combination in either
income from continuing operations in the periodi&f combination or directly in contributed capi@gpending on the circumstances.
Company adopted this update as of December 28, 2008as applied its provisions prospectively tsitess combinations that have
occurred after adoption.

In April 2009, the FASB issued “Accounting for Assé\cquired and Liabilities Assumed in a BusinessnBination That Arise from
Contingencies.” This update requires that assetsised and liabilities assumed in a business coatitain that arise from contingencies
be recognized at fair value if fair value can besmmably estimated. If fair value cannot be redsigrestimated, the asset or liability
would generally be recognized in accordance withc@unting for Contingencies,” and “Reasonable Estiom of the Amount of a
Loss.” Further, the FASB decided to remove thessghent accounting guidance for assets and liabikirising from contingencies, and
carry forward without significant revision the gaitte in “Business CombinationsThis update is effective for assets or liabilitasing
from contingencies in business combinations forolwlihe acquisition date is on or after the begigmifhthe first annual reporting period
beginning on or after December 28, 2008. The Cowpaopted this update effective December 16, 2008.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT INUED)
New Accounting Standards (Continued)

In April 2009, the FASB issued “Interim Disclosurasout Fair Value of Financial Instruments.” Thilate amends “Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” to requiraaosures about fair value of financial instrumédaotsnterim reporting periods of
publicly traded companies as well as in annualrfoia statements. This update also amends InteirianEial Reporting, to require those
disclosures in summarized financial informatiorn&rim reporting periods. This update became &ffedor the interim period ending
June 27, 2009 and did not have a material impath@Company's consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued “Revenue Arrangaswith Multiple Deliverables.” This statement piaes principles for allocating
sales consideration among multiple-element revaemeagements with an entity’s customers, allowirggerflexibility in identifying and
accounting for separate deliverables under an geragnt. This update introduces an estimated sqdlicg method for valuing the
elements of a bundled arrangement if vendor-speeffjective evidence or third-party evidence ofisglprice is not available, and
significantly expands related disclosure requiretsiehhis standard is effective on a prospectivéstfas revenue arrangements entered
into or materially modified in fiscal years begingion or after June 15, 2010. Alternatively, admptinay be on a retrospective basis,
early application is permitted. The Company is entlly evaluating the impact of adopting this promcement.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
The Company’s accounts receivable are compriséallass:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 2, December 27,
2010 2008

Billed $37,50: $45,85!
Accrued and unbilles 2,16( 7,044
Work-in-progress 7,88 3,95:
Allowance for doubtful accounts

and sales discour (1,199 (1,082
Accounts receivable, n $46,35: $55,77(

NOTE RECEIVABLE

On February 26, 2008, the Company accepted a psoryisiote from a customer for $7.4 million in payrnef a like amount of accounts
receivable from that customer. The customer pai8 #illion through April 30, 2008 at which pointamagement of the Company
concluded that the customer was going to defauitsollay 1, 2008 installment payment. During 2088 Company wrote off the note
receivable.

F-13




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

4. ACQUISITIONS
General

In connection with certain acquisitions, the Companobligated to pay contingent consideratiorhi $ellers upon the acquired business
achieving certain earnings targets over periodgingnfrom two to four years following the acquisiti In general, the contingent
consideration amounts fall into two categories:ajerred Consideration - fixed amounts due ifdbguisition achieves a base level of
earnings which has been determined at the timeapfisition and (b) Earnouts — amounts payabledtanot fixed and are based on the
growth in excess of the base level earnings.

Future Contingent Payments

The Company has three active acquisition agreemdmseby future contingent consideration may baeegand paid (NuSoft, MBH a
PSG as described herein). The NuSoft and MBH adopris were accounted for under “Business Comtanat which did not require
that the estimated fair value of contingent consitien be recorded as a liability. The Companyi@secorded any liability associated
with the contingent consideration that may be fpaidhe NuSoft and MBH acquisitions. The PSG asitjoin was accounted for under
“Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Agsed in Business Combinations That Arise from Guyencies” which requires that
the fair value of any future contingent considenatbe recorded as a liability. The Company hasrdghed that the estimated fair value
of the total future contingent consideration (DegdrConsideration and Earnouts) associated witlfP8@ acquisition is $0.9 million.
The amount actually paid, if any, may substantiakgeed the estimated fair value. Changes inaine/dlue, if any, will be recognized
earnings. The Company has recorded this liakalitgt increased its goodwill by a like amount.

The Company’s outstanding Deferred Consideratidigations potentially due after January 2, 2010ickhrelate to the three
acquisitions, could result in the following maximeferred Consideration payments:

Fiscal Year: Amoun!
2010 $2,80(
2011 1,65(C
Thereafte 85(
Maximum Deferred Consideratic $5,30(

The Company cannot estimate the Deferred Considarpayments with any certainty. However, the Camypbelieves that any
payments that may be made for fiscal year 2010neillexceed $0.5 million. Earnouts, if any, careestimated with any certainty and
as such are not included above.

NuSoft Solutions, Inc.
On March 19, 2008, the Company purchased the dpgrassets of NuSoft Solutions, Inc. (“NuSoft”).u8bft is a specialty provider of
information technology services. The acquisiticasveffective as of March 1, 2008. The acquisitiaa been accounted for in

accordance with “Business Combinations.” Accortlinthe results of operations of the acquired comygzave been included in the
consolidated results of operations of the Compamy fthe effective date and are included in therimfttion Technology segment.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

4.

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

The purchase consideration at closing consistéd & million in cash and 700,000 shares of RCMmomn stock (the “Common
Stock”), valued at $3.7 million. Post closing cioiesation consisted of potential Deferred Consitiengpayments up to $4.4 million and
additional Earnout payments, both amounts contingpan NuSoft achieving certain base levels of afpeg income for certain post
closing periods following the purchase. The adtjais has been accounted for under the purchaskadetf accounting. The source of
cash utilized in the NuSoft acquisition was frora thompany's revolving credit facility. The purchasice paid at closing of
approximately $8.2 million has been allocated dis\is:

Customer relationshiy $2,26(
Covenant-not-to-compete 424
Goodwill 5,12¢
Equipment 44€

$8,25¢

The Deferred Consideration and Earnouts, to thengxtaid, will be recorded as additional purchasesitleration and added to goodwill
on the consolidated balance sheet.

MBH Solutions, Inc.

On April 28, 2008, the Company purchased the opeyaissets of MBH Solutions, Inc. (“MBH”). MBH &specialty provider of
information technology services. The acquisiticasveffective as of April 1, 2008 and has been atteolfor in accordance with
“Business Combinations.” Accordingly, the resat®perations of the acquired company have bedadad in the consolidated results
of operations of the Company from the effectiveedaid are included in the Information Technologynsent.

The MBH purchase consideration at closing consisfel .8 million in cash and the assumption of $hiBion in certain liabilities. Post
closing consideration consisted of potential Defér€onsideration payments up to $1.5 million anditaxhal Earnout payments, both
amounts contingent upon MBH achieving certain begels of operating income for certain post clogiegiods following the

purchase. The acquisition has been accountechfterithe purchase method of accounting. The saidrcash utilized in the MBH
acquisition was from the Company’s revolving crdddility. The purchase price paid at closing opegximately $3.1 million has been
allocated as follows:

Customer relationshif $83¢
Covenant-not-to-compete 41
Goodwill 2,17¢
Equipment 36

$3,08"

The Deferred Consideration and Earnouts, to thengxtaid, will be recorded as additional purchasesideration and added to goodwill
on the consolidated balance sheet.
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4.

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)
Project Solutions Group, Inc.

On July 6, 2009, the Company purchased the opgratigets of Project Solutions Group, Inc. (“PS@$G is a specialty provider of
information technology services. PSG provides expm®ject management and training services tovarde client base. PSG helps
clients deploy Microsoft's project management tadolstreamline and coordinate project-based inigatacross their organizations.

The acquisition was effective as of June 28, 20@9tems been accounted for in accordance with “BssilCombinations” and
“Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assed in Business Combinations that Arise from Gayencies.” Accordingly, the
results of operations of the acquired company heen included in the consolidated results of opmratof the Company from the
effective date and are included in the Informafi@chnology segment.

The PSG purchase consideration at closing consiét$d.8 million in cash and 100,000 shares of RC®HmMmon Stock, valued at $0.2
million. The fair value of the common shares issuas determined based on the closing market pfitee Company's common stock
on the last trading day prior to the effective datéhe acquisition. Post closing considerationsisted of potential Deferred
Consideration payments up to $1.5 million and aok# Earnout payments, both amounts contingenh l88G achieving certain base
levels of operating income for certain post clogiegiods following the purchase. Additionally, tBempany recorded a liability of $0.9
million for the estimated fair value of future cimmgent consideration ("Contingent Consideratiorddgmtially due in connection with the
PSG acquisition. The effect of this transactiortt@aCompany's consolidated financial statementsnea material.

The acquisition has been accounted for under thehpae method of accounting. The purchase prieckgiailosing of approximately $1
million has been allocated as follows:

Customer relationshiy $25:
Covenant-notl-to-compete 38
Goodwill 72€

$1,01¢

Proforma Results of Operations

The following (unaudited) results of operations &iéeen prepared assuming the three previouslyidedacquisitions had occurred as
of the beginning of the periods presented. Thesalts are not necessarily indicative of resultiitafre operations or of results that
would have occurred had the acquisitions occurseaf ghe beginning of the periods presented.

Fiscal Years Ende

January 2, December 27,
2010 2008
Revenue! $191,98: $221,96.
Operating income (los: $1,42¢ ($43,11)
Net income (loss $6,99: ($39,269)
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh: $0.5¢ ($3.09)

F-16




RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are comprised of the folowi

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Equipment and furnitur $3,00( $2,89:
Computers and syster 7,04¢ 7,232
Leasehold improvemen 1,182 1,15:
11,22¢ 11,27¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize 6,46( 5,692
$4,76¢ $5,58¢

The Company writes off fully depreciated assethigesar. In fiscal 2009 and 2008, the write-offsev$837 and $1,205, respectively.
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6.

GOODWILL

As of November 28, 2009, the Company conducteantaial assessment of goodwill for impairment. 3seas goodwill for impairment,
the Company first compares the fair value of ifgoréing units with their net book value. The failue of the reporting units is estimated
using discounted expected future cash flows. Iffflirevalue of the reporting units exceeds theirbmok value, goodwill is not impaired,
and no further testing is necessary. If the nekbh@bue of the reporting units exceeds their failue, a second test is performed to
measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. Basare the amount of any impairment loss, the Cagngatermines the implied fair
value of goodwill in the same manner as if the répg units were being acquired in a business coatin. Specifically, the fair value
the reporting units is allocated to all of the &ssad liabilities of that unit, including any unognized intangible assets, in a hypothetical
calculation that would yield the implied fair valoégoodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwiis less than the goodwill recorded on
the balance sheet, an impairment charge for tlierdifce is recorded.

Based on the results of the annual assessmenbdfygibfor impairment, the fair value of all reporg units exceed ed net book value as
of November 28, 2009 and, there fore, there weaisnpairment of goodwill. Due to the thin tradiafjthe Company stock in the public
marketplace and the impact of the control premiehd by a relatively few shareholders, the Compagsdhot consider the market
capitalization of the Company the most appropmiagasure of fair value of goodwill for our reportiagits. We look to earnings/revenue
multiples of similar companies recently completaggjuisitions and the ability of our reporting undsgenerate cash flows as better
measures of the fair value of our reporting urited under such calculations the fair value exce#uedecorded goodwill by at least 2!

for each of the reporting units. Accordingly, iempany has determined it is not necessary toadisaetailed assumptions or estimates
used in its impairment test.

The determination of the fair value of the repagtimits requires the Company to make significatileges and assumptions that affect
the reporting unit expected future cash flows. These estimates ssudrgtions primarily include, but are not limited the discount rat
terminal growth rates, operating income before dejption and amortization and capital expenditémescasts. Due to the inherent
uncertainty involved in making these estimategjalatesults could differ from those estimates.ddition, changes in underlying
assumptions would have a significant impact oneeithe fair value of the reporting units or the dwdl impairment charge, if any.

The allocation of the fair value of the reportingjta to individual assets and liabilities withirpoating units also requires the Company to
make significant estimates and assumptions. Theatlbn requires several analyses to determine/édiie of assets and liabilities
including, among others, customer relationships-ommpetition agreements and current replacemests ¢or certain property, plant and
equipment.
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6. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillther years ended January 2, 2010 and December @8 ,a26 as follows:

Information
Technology Engineering Commercial Total
Balance as of December 29, 2( $29,64: $8,14: $1,80¢ $39,58t
Goodwill acquired during 20C 7,30C 10C - 7,40(
Goodwill impairment during 20C (32,209 (8,247) - (40,45()
Balance as of December 27, 2( $4,73¢ $ - $1,80¢ $6,53¢
Goodwill acquired during 20C 72¢ 10C - 82¢
Contingent consideration recorc 893 - - 89:
Balance as of January 2, 2C $6,35¢ $10(C $1,80¢ $8,26(

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of intangibetssfor the years ended January 2, 2010 and Dece&t#ip2008 are as follows:

Information
Technology Engineering Commercia Total
Balance as of December 29, 2( $23¢ $11: $ - $34¢
Intangibles acquired during 20 3,56( - - 3,56(
Amortization of intangibles during 20t (739 (39 - (767)
Intangibles impairment during 20 (2,866 - - (2,866
Balance as of December 27, 2( $197 $7¢ $ - $27¢
Intangibles acquired during 20 291 - - 291
Amortization of intangibles during 20! (68) (35 - (103)
Balance as of January 2, 2C $42( $44 $ - $46¢
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Schedule Intangible Asset Clas:

Information Commercial
Technology Engineering Services Total
Balance as of January 2, 2C
Restricted covenan $3: $8 $ - $41
Customer relationshig 387 36 - 427
$42( $44 $ - $46¢

Schedule Intangible Asset Amortizati

Information Commercial
Fiscal Yeal Technology Engineering Services Total
2010 $10¢ $34 $ - $13¢
2011 10¢ 10 - 11¢
2012 10¢ - - 10¢
Thereafte 10¢ - - 10£
$42( $44 $ - $46¢

8. LINE OF CREDIT

The Company and its subsidiaries are party to m éggeement with Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania,rated and restated effective
February 20, 2009, which provides for a $15 milliemolving credit facility and includes a sub-linoit $5.0 million for letters of credit
(the “Revolving Credit Facility”). Borrowings undéhe Revolving Credit Facility bear interest ataf two alternative rates, as selected
by the Company at each incremental borrowing. @ladi®rnatives are: (i) LIBOR (London Interbank €&d Rate), plus applicable
margin, or (ii) the agent bank's prime rate. ThenPany also pays unused line fees based on therdmobihe Revolving Credit Facility
that is not drawn.

At January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008, there $@0 million and $4.9 outstanding borrowings urtties facility, respectively. At
January 2, 2010, there were letters of credit antihg for $1.6 million. At January 2, 2010, then@rany had availability for additional
borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility df3$4 million.

All borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facilaye collateralized by all of the assets of the Camypand its subsidiaries and a pledge
of the stock of its subsidiaries. The Revolvingdt Facility also contains various financial amahffinancial covenants, such as
restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay divids. The Revolving Credit Facility expires in Asg@2011.

The weighted average interest rates under the RegoCredit Facility for the fiscal year ended Janwu2, 2010 and December 27, 2008

were 2.2% and 3.8%, respectively. The majorithairowings in 2009 and 2008 were subject to alteraedi) LIBOR (London Interban
Offered Rate), plus applicable margin on contrat30 days or more.
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9.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

At January 2, 2010, the Company had five shareebas®loyee compensation plans. The Company meathedair value of stock
options, if and when granted, based upon the dasiarket price of the Company’s common stock ordéite of grant. Grants vest over
periods ranging from one to three years and expitten 10 years of issuance. Stock options that weaccordance with service
conditions amortize over their applicable vestiegiqd using the straight-line method.

The Company recognizes compensation costs inrhadial statements for all share-based paymertsdordance with “Share-Based
Payment.” The straight-line recognition methodsed to recognize compensation expense associétedhare-based payments that are
subject to graded vesting based on service conditi®hare-based compensation expense of $181180da&as recognized for the years
ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008, tesgc

The Company estimated the weighted average failevafl options granted using the Black-Scholes @fincing Model. The Black-
Scholes option weighted average assumptions ustbé ivaluation of stock options for the fiscal yeanded January 2, 2010 and
December 27, 2008 were as follows:

Fiscal Years Ende

January 2, December 27,
2010 2008
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 2.23% 3.04%
Expected term of optio 5 year 5 year
Expected stock price volatilil 67% 61%
Expected dividend yiel $0.C $0.C
Annual forfeiture ratt 12.9% 16.1%
Weightec-average grant date fair val $1.0¢ $2.57

1992 Incentive Stock Option Plan (the 1992 Plan)

The 1992 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideApril 1992 and amended in April 1998, provdder the issuance of up to
500,000 shares of common stock per individual fiwexfs, directors, and key employees of the Comparg/its subsidiaries through
February 13, 2002, at which time the 1992 PlanrexipiThe options issued were intended to be ineemstiock options pursuant to
Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code. Th@ogerms were not permitted to exceed 10 yeargtaméxercise price was not
permitted to be less than 100% of the fair markdte of the shares at the time of grant. The Corsgiion Committee of the Board of
Directors determined the vesting period at the tiingrant for each of these options. As of Jan2ar3010, options to purchase 60,455
shares of common stock granted under the 1992viRdam outstanding.

1994 Non-employee Directors Stock Option Plan {t8@4 Plan)

The 1994 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideMay 1994 and amended in April 1998, proviftadthe issuance of up to
110,000 shares of common stock to non-employeetdie of the Company through February 19, 2004hath time the 1994 Plan
expired. Options granted under the 1994 Plan wempted at fair market value at the date of gramd, the exercise of options is
contingent upon service as a director for a pevioohe year. Options granted under the 1994 Rlanibate when an optionee ceases to
be a director of the Company. As of January 2020ptions to purchase 50,000 shares of commoRk gt@nted under the 1994 Plan
were outstanding.
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9.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
1996 Executive Stock Option Plan (the 1996 Plan)

The 1996 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideAugust 1996 and amended in April 1999, predifor the issuance of up to
1,250,000 shares of common stock to officers aydekeployees of the Company and its subsidiariesutitt January 1, 2006, at which
time the 1996 Plan expired. Options are genegabyited at fair market value at the date of grdmte Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors determines the vesting periothattime of grant. As of January 2, 2010, optitmpurchase 677,045 shares of
common stock granted under the 1996 Plan wereamditg.

2000 Employee Stock Incentive Plan (the 2000 Plan)

The 2000 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideApril 2001, provides for the issuance of a@ 500,000 shares of the
Companys common stock to officers and key employees ofabmpany and its subsidiaries or to consultantsaaivisors utilized by th
Company. The Compensation Committee of the BohRirectors may award incentive stock options on-gpialified stock options, as
well as stock appreciation rights, and determihesvesting period at the time of grant. As of ag2, 2010, -0- shares of common
stock were available for future grants under th@2?Blan, and options to purchase 503,194 sharesnofnon stock granted under the
2000 Plan were outstanding.

The 1992 Plan, 1994 Plan, 1996 Plan and 2000 Péaexpired and therefore no shares are availabliegoance.
2007 Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan (the 200@)Pla

The 2007 Plan, approved by the Company’s stockinelideJune 2007, provides for the issuance of o000 shares of the
Company’s common stock to officers, non-employeeators, employees of the Company and its subgdiar to consultants and
advisors utilized by the Company. No more than,380 shares of common stock in the aggregate magshed pursuant to grants of
stock awards, stock units, performance shares #neal stock-based awards. No more than 300,00@stéicommon stock with respect
to awards may be granted to any individual during féiscal year. The Compensation Committee ofBhard of Directors determines 1
vesting period at the time of grant. As of Janugrg010, 426,100 shares of common stock wereablaifor future grants under the
2007 Plan, and options to purchase 273,900 shammsronon stock granted under the 2007 Plan wergtanding.

As of January 2, 2010, the Company had approxim&245 of total unrecognized compensation costeélto non-vested awards
granted under the Company’s various share-based,pihich the Company expects to recognize overoxppately a three-year
period. These amounts do not include the coshpfaaditional options that may be granted in fujpeeiods or reflect any potential
changes in the Company’s forfeiture rate.
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9. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

Transactions related to all stock options are hevis:

All Stock Options Outstandin

Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Prict

Options outstanding as of December 29, 2 1,462,001 $4.4¢
Options grante: 56,95( 4.9:
Options exercise - -
Options forfeited/cancelle (225,05() 4.6(
Options outstanding as of December 27, 2 1,293,90I $4.4¢
Options exercisable as of December 27, Z 1,214,501
Intrinsic value of outstanding stock options a®etember 27, 20C $0.C
Options outstanding as of December 27, 2 1,293,90! $4.4¢
Options grante: 365,19« $1.8¢
Options exercise - -
Options forfeited/cancelle (94,500 $4.4¢
Options outstanding as of January 2, 2 1,564,59 $3.87
Options exercisable as of January 2, 2 1,162,40! $4.32
Intrinsic value of outstanding stock options as

of January 2, 201 $231,08:i

The following table summarizes information abowic&toptions outstanding at January 2, 2010:

Weighted-Average

Range of Number of Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Price Outstanding Option Contractual Life Exercise Prict

Outstandin¢ Vested Outstandin¢ Vested Outstanding Vested
$0.95- $0.95 20,00( 0 9.18 - $0.95 $0.00
$1.73- $2.60 335,19« 0 9.62 - $1.91 $0.00
$3.00- $4.50 818,50( 818,50( 3.89 3.89 $3.95 $3.95
$4.70- $7.05 355,90( 333,90( 4.36 4.13 $5.11 $5.07
$9.16- $9.81 35,00( 10,00( 7.54 7.53 $9.62 $9.16
$0.95- $9.81 1,564,59. 1,162,401 5.37 3.99 $3.87 $4.32
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9.

10.

SHARE BASED COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company implemented the 2001 Employee Stoc&ase Plan (the “Purchase Plawi)h shareholder approval, effective Januar
2001. Under the Purchase Plan, employees meetitajrc specific employment qualifications are dligito participate and can purchase
shares of common stock semi-annually through phglealuctions at the lower of 85% of the fair mankaiue of the stock at the
commencement or end of the offering period. Thelpase plan permits eligible employees to purckhaees of common stock through
payroll deductions for up to 10% of qualified compation. During the fiscal year ended Januaryd202there were 86,752 shares is¢
under the Purchase Plan for net proceeds of $83of 8anuary 2, 2010, there were 94,536 sharelbiefor issuance under the
Purchase Plan. Compensation expense, represémimijscount to the quoted market price, for theeRase Plan for the fiscal years
ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008 waarB¥834, respectively.

On June 18, 2009, the Company's stockholders apgran amendment to the Purchase Plan increasitgtéh@umber of shares of
common stock authorized for purchase by 300,0@0n(f600,000 to 800,000 shares). As of January P).2Be issuance of these shares
has not yet been registered with the SEC.

RETIREMENT PLANS
Profit Sharing Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) profit sharing gtarthe benefit of eligible employees in the Unitehtes and other similar plans in
Canada and Puerto Rico (the “Retirement Planshe 401(k) plan includes a cash or deferred arrargépursuant to Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code sponsored by the Comjpamyvide eligible employees an opportunity toedlefompensation and have such
deferred amounts contributed to the 401(k) plaa pne-tax basis, subject to certain limitationsie Tompany, at the discretion of the
Board of Directors, may make contributions of casmatch deferrals of compensation by participantbe Retirement

Plans. Contributions to the Retirement Plans atitg operations by the Company for years endedadar2, 2010 and December 27,
2008 were $545 and $527, respectively.
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11. COMMITMENTS
Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement with iisf &xecutive Officer and President, Leon Kopyt ¢:NKopyt”), which currently
provides for an annual base salary of $625 and atltomary benefits. In addition, the agreemeowiges that Mr. Kopyt’'s annual
bonus is based on EBITDA, defined as earnings beftderest, taxes, depreciation, and amortizatitime agreement is for a rolling term
of three years, which automatically extends eacir f@ an additional one-year period on FebruarpP8ach year. The agreement
expires on February 28, 2013. The employment aggeeis terminable by the Company upon Mr. Kopgésith or disability, or for
“good and sufficient cause,” as defined in the agrent.

Termination Benefits Agreement

The Company is party to a Termination Benefits Agnent with Mr. Kopyt, amended on December 12, 200cbmply with the
requirements of section 409A of the Internal Rewe@ode of 1986 (the "Benefits Agreement”). Purstmthe Benefits Agreement,
following a Change in Control (as defined therethg remaining term of Mr. Kopyt's employment isezxded for five years (the
"Extended Term"). If Mr. Kopyt's employment isrt@nated thereafter by the Company other than faseaor by Mr. Kopyt for good
reason (including, among other things, a matehiahge in Mr. Kopyt's salary, title, reporting respibilities or a change in office
location which requires Mr. Kopyt to relocate), iitbe following provisions take effect: the Compasmpbligated to pay Mr. Kopyt a
lump sum equal to his salary and bonus for the edea of the Extended Term; and the Company steatitdigated to pay to Mr. Kopyt
the amount of any excise tax associated with tinefite provided to Mr. Kopyt under the Benefits Agment. If such a termination had
taken place as of January 2, 2010, Mr. Kopyt wddlde been entitled to cash payments of approxim&telr million (representing
salary and excise tax payments).

Severance Agreement

The Company is party to a Severance AgreementMitiKopyt, amended on December 12, 2007 to comyitly the requirements of
section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (Severance Agreement”). The agreement provfimesertain payments to be
made to Mr. Kopyt and for the continuation of Mog§t's employee benefits for a specified time alfftisrservice with the Company is
terminated other than “for caus@s$ defined in the Severance Agreement. Amountalpayo Mr. Kopyt under the Severance Agreel
would be offset and reduced by any amounts recdiyddr. Kopyt after his termination of employmemtder his current employment
and termination benefits agreements, which arelsopmgmnted and not superseded by the Severance Agnéetii Mr. Kopyt had been
terminated as of January 2, 2010, then under thestef the Severance Agreement, and after offgeétity amounts that would have bt
received under his current employment and ternonatienefits agreements, he would have been entitledsh payments of
approximately $3.9 million, inclusive of employeentefits.
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11. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Operating Leases
The Company leases office facilities and variousiggent under non-cancelable leases expiring awsidates through September

2015. Certain leases are subject to escalatiarsetabased upon changes in various factors. Thienomin future annual operating lease
commitments for leases with non-cancelable ternexaess of one year, exclusive of operating esoalaharges, are as follows:

Fiscal Years Amount
2010 $3,84:
2011 3,17¢
2012 2,017
2013 791
2014 147

Thereaftel 96
Total $10,06¢

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Janu&91®) and December 27, 2008 was $3,408 and $3,86dectively.

The Company subleases space to other tenantsi@vaffice locations under cancelable lease agea¢sn During fiscal 2009 and 2008
revenues of approximately $343 and $384, respégtiwere recognized under these leasing arrangement

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A director of the Company is a shareholder in afiam that has rendered various legal serviceh¢oGompany. Fees paid to the law
firm have not been significant.

13. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax (benefit) expensasifellows:

Years Endel
January 2, December 27,
2010 2008
Current
Federal $622 $ -
State and loce 71¢ 18¢
Foreign 79¢ 1,122
2,14C 1,311
Deferred
Federal 2,08: (4,549
State (36) (1,320
2,047 (5,869
Total $4,18" ($4,55¢)
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13. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The income tax provisions reconciled to the tax potad at the statutory Federal rate was:

January 2, December 27,
2010 2008
Tax at statutory rate (cred 34.(% 34.(%
State income taxes, net of Federal
income tax benef 4.1 1.7
Permanent difference 1.3 0.3
Foreign income tax effe: .7 (0.5)
Non-deductible impairment of
goodwill and intangible asse - (23.7)
Other, ne - (1.5)
Total income tax expen: 37.7% 10.2%
At January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008, deféasedssets and liabilities consist of the following
January 2, December 27, January 2, December 27,
2010 2008 2010 2008
Current Long Term
Deferred tax asset
Loss carryforward $20¢ $2,38" $ - $ -
Allowance for doubtful accoun 47¢ 432 - -
Alternative minimum tax credit - 17¢ - -
Acquisition amortization, ne - - 3,82¢ 4,37¢
Reserves and accru: 63¢ 15€ - -
Other - 43 - -
Valuation allowanct (208) (358 - -
Net 1,11¢ 2,88¢ 3,82¢ 4,37¢€
Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaid expense defer (413) (639) - -
(413) (634 - -
Net deferred tax asse $70¢ $2,20- $3,82¢ $4,37¢

The Company recorded deferred tax assets relateddaarryforwards of $0.2 million and $2.4 miflias of January 2, 2010 and
December 27, 2008, respectively. The Companyzatlithe remaining Federal NOL of $2,029 duringytear ended January 2, 2010 to
reduce the current federal tax provision. As ofuay 2, 2010 the Company projects that it will hate any remaining federal net
operating loss carryforward and the deferred taetasf $0.2 million pertains to a state net opacpldss in one state. In order to utilize
the underlying state net operating loss carryfodytire Company will need to generate future taxatmeme in this state and the future
tax laws in this state will need to permit the effagainst such taxable net operating income yif dhere can be no assurance that such
levels of taxable income will be generated or thatfuture tax laws will permit such offset. There, the Company has recorded a full
valuation allowance against the state net operdisgycarryforward as of January 2, 2010.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

13. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The Company did not have any liabilities for unagertax positions or any known unrecognized taxefiehat January 2, 2010 or
December 27, 2008. The Company'’s policy is to mtaaterest and penalty, if any, in interest exgens

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolalateS. Federal income tax return and file in vasistates. The Company and its
subsidiaries are no longer subject to income taxmxations by taxing authorities for years prioe@96.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company follows “Disclosures about SegmentnoEnterprise and Related Information,” which dithbs standards for companies
to report information about operating segmentsgegguhic areas and major customers. The accoupdligies of each segment are the
same as those described in the summary of signtfaxecounting policies (see Note 1).

Segment operating income includes selling, gerrdladministrative expenses directly attributabldhat segment as well as charges for
allocating corporate costs to each of the opera@yments. The following tables reflect the resaoftthe segments consistent with the
Company’s management system:

Information

Fiscal 2009 Technology Engineering Commercial Corporate Total

Revenue $87,89¢ $62,22( $39,27 $- $189,39:
Cost of service 66,20¢ 48,03 28,31¢ - 142 ,55¢
Selling, general and administrati 23,43t 10,84 9,60¢ - 43,88
Depreciation and amortizatic 741 684 19¢ - 1,621
Operating (loss) incom ($2,489 $2,66: $1,15¢ $- $1,32¢
Total asset $21,58! $24,92( $9,92° $21,77 $78,20¢
Capital expenditure $71 $43: $2 $29¢ $80z
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008

(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information

Fiscal 2008 Technology Engineering Commercial Corporate Total
Revenue $103,441 $59,25! $46,58( $- $209,27
Cost of service 76,22 45,33 33,744 - 155,30:
Selling, general and administrati 26,34 10,06: 10,16¢ - 46,56¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,37¢ 512 177 - 2,067
Bad debr- note receivabl - 6,09( - - 6,09(
Impairment of goodwill and

intangible asse’ 35,07¢ 8,24( - - 43,31t
Operating (loss) incom ($35,57)) ($10,98) $2,49¢ $- ($44,06%)
Total asset $22,41¢ $27,94: $14,05¢ $14,42. $78,84:
Capital expenditure $122 $367 $16¢ $2,01( $2,66"

The Company derives a majority of its revenue femmpanies headquartered in the United States. riRegaeported for each operating
segment are all from external customers. The Comjgmdomiciled in the United States and its segmseperate in the United States,
Canada and Puerto Rico. The Company anticipatesiog a branch office in Ireland during 2010. Rewes and total assets by

geographic area for the years ended January 2,@d ®ecember 27, 2008 are as follows:

January 2 December 27
2010 2008
Revenue:!

United State: $163,57: $185,23!
Canads 22,54( 20,60¢
Puerto Ricc 3,281 3,43¢
$189,39: $209,27

Total Assets
United State: $66,02( $70,51!
Canads 10,85: 7,43¢
Puerto Ricc 1,33 982
$78,20¢ $78,84:
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

15. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAU DITED)

Fiscal Year Ended January 2, 2010

Basic and
Gross Net Diluted Net Income Per
Sales Profit Income Share
1st Quarte $48,04¢ $10,94: $5,55: $0.4:
2nd Quarte 47,22 11,57¢ 24¢€ 0.0z
3rd Quartel 4475 11,84( 437 0.0z
4th Quartel 49,37: 12,47¢ 68¢€ 0.0¢€
Total $189,39: $46,83! $6,92: $0.5¢
Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 2008
Net Diluted
Gross (Loss) Net (Loss) Income
Sales Profit Income Per Share (e
1st Quarte $49,11: $12,29¢ ($2,669 ($0.29)
2nd Quarte 55,01: 15,15( 1,44C 0.11
3rd Quartel 51,617 13,25t 56¢& 0.04
4th Quarte(@ 53,53¢ 13,27: (39,14) (3.06)
Total $209,27 $53,97! ($39,80Y ($3.15)

@ In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company recdraleumulative adjustment to income tax (benefipemse to properly record deferred
tax liabilities associated with acquisitions in 80hd prior to 2008 totaling an increase to deteta liabilities of $1.3 million and an
increase to deferred tax expense of $1.3 milliGn that total, approximately $0.6 million relatesyiears prior to 2006, and $0.2 million
relates to each of the years 2006 and 2007, arkdn§illion relates to the prior interim quarters2f08. Management believes that the
adjustments related to all prior years and priterim quarters of 2008 are immaterial to thoserfaial statements. Additionally, in the
fourth quarter of 2008, the Company recorded a gidbunpairment charge totaling $37.6 million, nafttax.
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RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

16.

17.

18.

CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party to two agreements of indenmeiigted to the performance of two constructiorjguois. One of these construction
projects is managed by a former customer of the g2zmmy and the construction for this project was detegl in the third quarter of 200
The second of these construction projects was negthlag the same customer prior to November 2008 wieemitial contract was
transferred to the Company. The Company now acteeageneral contractor on this construction jgtoj@he contract price is
approximately $6.2 million and management of thenfany estimates it was approximately 99% completef danuary 2, 2010. The
Company believes this project will be finishedhe first quarter of fiscal year 2010. In the evafithon-performance on either
construction project, the Company may be obligéddddemnify the project owners for certain coséiwuns on such projects.
Management believes that any such cost overrungdwat have a significant adverse financial impgadhe financial position of the
Company and its results of operations.

From time to time, the Company is a defendant aingff in various legal actions which arise in thermal course of business. As such,
the Company is required to assess the likelihoahgfadverse outcomes to these matters as wetltastjal ranges of losses and poss
recoveries. The Company may not be covered byanse as it pertains to some or all of these mattArdetermination of the amount
the provision required for these commitments amtingencies, if any, which would be charged to gey®, is made after careful analy
of each matter. Once established, a provision chayge in the future due to new developments angdg®in circumstances, and could
increase or decrease the Company’s earnings ipettied that the changes are made. The Compangdeaged a provision for losses
aggregating approximately $0.7 million and $0.4lioil as of January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2@3perctively. Asserted claims in
these matters seek approximately $3.6 million images as of January 2, 2010.

The Company is also subject to other pending Ipgadeedings and claims that arise from time to fimthe ordinary course of its
business, which may or may not be covered by imagra

LEGAL SETTLEMENT

In 2002, the Company recorded a charge of $7.6amitelating to a lawsuit with two former officeasd directors who joined the
Company through an acquisition in 1996. The Conggied suit on professional liability claims agatrihe attorneys and law firms who
had served as its counsel in the acquisition tiitimsaand in connection with its subsequent dealingh the plaintiffs concerning their
various relationships with the Company resultimgnfrthat transaction. In 2007, the Company reaehsgttlement with one of the law
firm defendants resulting in the recovery of $0i8iom. In March 2009, the Company entered inteettlement agreement with the
remaining defendants in this lawsuit. The Compagived $9.8 million on March 27, 2009.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company announced on February 3, 2010 th8oigsd of Directors had approved a program to repase up to $7.5 million of tl
Companys outstanding shares of common stock from timére bver the subsequent 12 months, depending oketnemnditions, sha
price and other factors. The repurchases may be madhe open market, in block trades or otherwidee program may be suspende
discontinued at any time.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of RCM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada cattjmor) and
Subsidiaries (the Company) as of January 2, 20tiGlanrelated consolidated statements of incomem@és in stockholders’
equity, comprehensive income (loss) and cash flowthe year ended January 2, 2010. These corgetidinancial statements
and financial statement schedule are the respdinsiti the Company's managemen®ur responsibility is to express an opin
on these consolidated financial statements anddiadstatement schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedwlof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@iq@nited
States). Those standards require that we plan erfdrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatioether the financial
statements are free of material misstatemértie Company is not required to have, nor were vgaged to perform, an audit of
its internal control over financial reportingOur audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a be
for designing audit procedures that are appropimatle circumstances, but not for the purposexpfessing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidenpeorting the amounts and disclosures in the iahstatements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant esti;matade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfinancial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonables basour opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteagaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the
consolidated financial position of RCM Technologiks. and Subsidiaries as of January 2, 2010tlaadonsolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for the year dntdmuary 2, 2010, in conformity with accountinmeiples generally accepted
in the United States of America.

We have also audited the Consolidated Financiaé®imnt Schedule, Schedule Il — Valuation and Qyiatif Accounts
and Reserves for the year ended January 2, 2@16urlopinion, the related financial statement daltes when considered in
relation to the basic financial statements takea a$ole, present fairly, in all material respetig, information set forth therein.

/s/ Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Edison, New Jersey

March 11, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheet of RCM Technologies, Inc. (a Nevada catjmr) an
Subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 27, 2008he related consolidated statements of incohamges in stockholders’
equity, comprehensive income and cash flows foryér then ended. Our audit of the basic finanstialements included t
financial statement schedule listed in the indepeaping under Item 15(a)(2). These consolidatednitial statements a
financial statement schedule are the responsilafithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspamion or
these consolidated financial statements and fishstatement schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight iodJnitec
States). Those standards require that we plan arfdrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancataklbether the financi
statements are free of material misstatemefttie Company is not required to have, nor were vgaged to perform, an audit
its internal control over financial reportingOur audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a be
for designing audit procedures that are appropiratbe circumstances, but not for the purposexpf@ssing an opinion on t
effectiveness of the Company'’s internal controlrdfieancial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinioAn audi
also includes examining, on a test basis, evideopporting the amounts and disclosures in the filmhstatements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estisat@de by management, as well as evaluating thelb¥i@ancial stateme
presentation. We believe that our audit provide a reasonablestfasiour opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaereferred to above present fairly, in all materiespects, tr
consolidated financial position of RCM Technologikg. and Subsidiaries as of December 27, 2008tz consolidated rest
of their operations and their cash flows for tharythen ended, in conformity with accounting priodes generally accepted in
United States of America. Also in our opiniore tielated financial statement schedule, when cersitlin relation to the ba:
financial statements taken as a whole, presety fairall material respects, the information satlfi therein.

/s/Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 24, 2009
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SCHEDULE Il

RCM TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
Years Ended January 2, 2010 and December 27, 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts, unless otherwise indicated)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Other End of
Description of Period Expense! Accounts Deduction Period

Fiscal Year Ended
January 2, 2010

Allowance for doubtful
accounts on trade receivab $1,08: $1,14( $ - $1,02¢ $1,19¢

Fiscal Year Ended
December 27, 2008

Allowance for doubtful

accounts on trade
receivable: $1,72: $7,67¢ $ - $8,31¢ $1,08:
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Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
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RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.
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Soltre Technology, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 11, 2010 ne&pect to the consolidated financial statememisralated
schedules which are included in the Annual RepoR®M Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries on Fof¥KIfor the fiscal year
ended January 2, 2010. We hereby consent to toggaration by reference of said report in the Begtion Statements of RC
Technologies, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-145%dfective September 6, 2007, File No. 333-61&0@ctive April 21,
1993, File No. 333-80590, effective June 22, 1%9k, No. 333-48089, effective March 17, 1998, Mle. 333-52206, effective
December 19, 2000 and File No. 333-52480, effedigeember 21, 2000).

/s/ Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Edison, New Jersey

March 11, 2010




EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 24, 2009 vefipect to the consolidated financial statements schedul
included in the Annual Report of RCM Technologiésc. and Subsidiaries on Form KOfor the year ended January
2010. We hereby consent to the incorporation fgreace of said report in the Registration Statasmeh RCM Technologie
Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-145904, effectieptember 6, 2007, File No. 333-61306, effectiveildfi, 1993, File No. 333-
80590, effective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-48@8fective March 17, 1998, File No. 382206, effective December 19, 2(
and File No. 333-52480, effective December 21, 2000

/s/Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 11, 2010




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomtny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over finanocggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changaéregistrant’s internal control over financial eggng that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngave disclosed, based on our most recent evaiuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 11, 2010 /siLeon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoiee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over finanogdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changééregistrant’s internal control over financial egjing that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 11, 2010 /siKevin D. Miller

Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Secre




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKR&€M Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for thecfl year ended January 2, 2010, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Leon Kopye®dent & Chief Executive Officer of

the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. secli®b0, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of tHeaBSas-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 04188 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Leon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chief Executive Officer
March 11, 201(

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKR&€M Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for thecfl year ended January 2, 2010, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Kevin D. Mill€hief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section013% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sask@mley Act of 2002, to my

knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 04188 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
March 11, 201(

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 21

Business Support Group of Michigan, Inc.
Cataract, Inc.

Programming Alternatives of Minnesota, Inc.

RCM Technologies Ireland Ltd.

RCM Technologies Ireland Holding Ltd.
RCM Technologies Services Company, Inc.
RCM Technologies (USA), Inc.

RCM Technologies Canada Corp.

RCMT Delaware, Inc.

Soltre Technology, Inc.
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 11, 2010 nepect to the consolidated financial statememisralated
schedules which are included in the Annual RepoR®M Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries on Fof¥KIfor the fiscal year
ended January 2, 2010. We hereby consent to toggaration by reference of said report in the Begtion Statements of RC
Technologies, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-145%dfective September 6, 2007, File No. 333-61&0@ctive April 21,
1993, File No. 333-80590, effective June 22, 1%9k, No. 333-48089, effective March 17, 1998, Mle. 333-52206, effective
December 19, 2000 and File No. 333-52480, effedigeember 21, 2000).

/s/ Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Amper, Politziner and Mattia LLP
Edison, New Jersey

March 11, 2010




EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RCM Technologies, Inc.

We have issued our report dated March 24, 2009 vefipect to the consolidated financial statements schedul
included in the Annual Report of RCM Technologiésc. and Subsidiaries on Form KOfor the year ended January
2010. We hereby consent to the incorporation fgreace of said report in the Registration Statasmeh RCM Technologie
Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-145904, effectieptember 6, 2007, File No. 333-61306, effectiveildfi, 1993, File No. 333-
80590, effective June 22, 1994, File No. 333-48@8f&ective March 17, 1998, File No. 382206, effective December 19, 2(
and File No. 333-52480, effective December 21, 2000

/s/Grant Thornton LLP
Grant Thornton LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 11, 2010




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Leon Kopyt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomtny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnittate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changaéregistrant’'s internal control over financial eggng that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngave disclosed, based on our most recent evaiuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 11, 2010 /siLeon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Kevin D. Miller, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRCM Technologies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alnare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepared

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfirial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changaéregistrant’s internal control over financial eggng that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngave disclosed, based on our most recent evaiuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
function):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrarst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 11, 2010 /siKevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer, and Secrete




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fR&€M Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for thecfl year ended January 2, 2010, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the "Report"), |, Leon Kopye®dent & Chief Executive Officer of

the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. secli®b0, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of tHeaBSas-Oxley Act of 2002, to my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 04188 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Leon Kopyt
Leon Kopyt
Chief Executive Officer
March 11, 201(

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fR&€M Technologies, Inc. (the "Company") for thecfl year ended January 2, 2010, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Kevin D. Mill€hief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section013% adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sask@mley Act of 2002, to my

knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 041288 amended (15 U.S.C. sec
78m (a)); and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Kevin D. Miller
Kevin D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
March 11, 201(

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to RCM Technedpdnc. and will be retained by RCM
Technologies, Inc. and furnished to the Securdies Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



